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603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
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May 1.2024

L

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-
B001), Contoocook, NH, to continue to provide transitional housing services for adults who have
severe mental illness or severe and persistent mental illness, by exercising a contract renewal
option by increasing the price limitation by $3,428,800 from $10,852,600 to $14,281,400 and by
extending the completion date from June 30,2024 to June 30, 2025, effective Julyl, 2024, upon
Governor and Council approval. 1.5% Federal Funds. 98.5% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15,2020, (item #16),
as amended on September 23,2020. (item #15), and most recently amended on June 15, 2022,
(item #23).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified,

05-95-092-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
92204117 $2,582,800 $0 $2,582,800

2022 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
92204117 $1,897,000 $0 $1,897,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
92204117 $2,997,000 $0 $2,997,000

2024 102-500731 ■
Contracts

for Prog Svc
92204117 $3,375,800 $0 $3,375,800

2025 102-500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
92204117 $0 $3,375,800 $3,375,800

Subtotal $10,852,600 $3,375,800 $14,228,400
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OS-95-092-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title'

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204120

$0 $53,000 $53,000

"  •
Subtotal $0 $53,000 $53,000

Total $10,852,600 $3,428,800 $14,281,400

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor has capacity
tb provide a 76-bed transitional housing program and has expertise with providing targeted mental
health services.

The purpose of this request is for the continued operation of a transitional housing program
for adults who have severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent mental illness (SMPI)
and are eligible for community mental health sen/ices at a Community Mental Health Center, as
defined in New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no longer meet the level of
care provided by New Hampshire Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities.

Approximately ICQ individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2025.

Individuals aged 16 years and older, who participate in the transitional housing program,
will continue to receive the necessary services to support and promote rehabilitation that
facilitates a transition to independent living in the community. The Contractor will continue
providing a 76-bed transitional housing program as well as offering psychiatric, clinical and
medical services, medication management, targeted case management, specialized and co-
occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for community
connectedness and family involvement. \

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services by reviewing monthly and
quarterly reports, annual Adult Needs and Strengths Assessments, and individual service
encounter data provided by the Contractor.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor arid Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, transitional housing program
beds will no longer be available to individuals, in need of transitional residential treatment
services, who are transitioning from New Hampshire Hospital or a designated receiving facility to
the community which, in turn, limits the availability of beds for individuals awaiting inpatient
hospital services across the State.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds; Assistance Listing Number #93.958, FAIN #1B09SM089640.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

c:.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

77ie Deparlment of Health and Human Services'Mission 15 to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Transitional Housing Programs contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NFI North, Inc. ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 15, 2020, (item #16), as amended on September 23, 2020, (item #15), and most recently amended
on June 15, 2022, (item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$14,281,400

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1.23.7, to read:

1.23.7. The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to independent housing by providing
support to individuals and landlords after discharge, until a warm handoff is completed
with the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) HBSP housing specialist.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section i, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 0.3% Federal funds. Mental Health Block Grant, as awarded on October 13, 2023, by
the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, ALN 93.958, FAIN #

-  1B09SM089640.

1.2. 99.7% General funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3.4. lead in paragraph only, to read:

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the sen/ices they receive, and
for operational costs contained in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-5, Amendment 3, SFY
2025 Budget, for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the Department to access
contract funds provided through this Agreement.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-5, Amendment 3. SFY 2025 Budget.

7. Add Exhibit C-5, Amendment #3, SFY 2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

NFl North, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain in
full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/2/2024

Date

OocuStpnvd by:

Name: Kat]a s. fox

Title: ,
Director

NFI North. Inc.

5/2/2024

Date

"DoeuSlBMd by:

-CQ963CEM8504CF-

Name: Luke Reynard

Title:
Executive Director

NFI North, Inc.

SS-2021 -DBH-OS-TRANS-OI -AOS
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgfMd by;

5/8/2024

.74873*844941400..

Date Name; Robyn cuarino
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A03 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NFI NORTH, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on July 06, 1992. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 175745

Certificate Number: 0005764736

Urn

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar>' of State
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n
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Bruce Farenwald - ^ hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of NFI North, Inc..

)

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _April 10 . _ . " 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: Luke Reynard, Executive Director. (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of _NFI North. Inc. ■ to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and alt
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. .This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:_4/10/2024
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Bruce Farenwald

Title: Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD,

NORTHAME76

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/Ym)

12/28/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

US! Insurance Services LLC

12 Gill Street Suite 5500

Woburn, MA 01801

855 874-0123

NAME**^' Susan Kania

Ko.e«i: 855 874-0123 [-^2. no): 781-376-5035
A^REss: Susan.Kanla(gusi.com

'  INSURER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

NFI North Inc.

40 Park Lane

Contoocook, NH 03229

INSURER B: Noith River Insurance Company 21105

INSURER C:

INSURER D: -

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL
INSR

SUBR
PCUCY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DO/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
(mm/do/yyyy) UMITS

COMMERCUL GENERAL LIABILTTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

PHPK2638415 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

*I5ES 7Ea^>ec^(rence)
MED EXP (Any on> parton)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY I I JECT I I LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

s1.000.000

s1.000.000

sS.OOO

s1.000.000

s3,000,000

s3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2638417 01/01/2024 01/01/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddanU t1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
ALfTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

ALfTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Peracddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer acddenll

UMBRELLA LULB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB894574 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE s10.000.000

AGGREGATE s10.000.000

X RETENTION si 0000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER«XECUTIVEi
OFFICERAJEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea, descrlba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

'El

4067401824 07/01/2023 07/01/2024 V PER
* STATUTE

OTH-

1R_

E-L, EACH ACCIDENT Si .000.000

E,L, DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE si .000.000

E L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT si .000.000

Professional

Abuse

PHPK2638415

PHPK2638415

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

1MIU3MIL

1MIL/3MIL

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional RemarXa Scliadule, may be attached If more apace la requlrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept Health 8> Human Services;

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S43125811/M43081024

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
MLK2P
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NFI North Mission Statement

Inspiring and ernpowering people to reach their full

potential so that they can live successfully within their

own home and community
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NFI NORTH. INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR END JUNE 30,2023
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NFI NORTH, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.
Stoneham, Massachusetts

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NFI North, Inc., which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NFI North, Inc. as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of NFI North, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NFI North, Inc.'s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available, to be
issued.

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllon LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAelobal,com/disclaimer.

(1)
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Board of Directors

NFl North. Inc.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable^assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of NFl North, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NFl North, Inc.'s, ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

(2)
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Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
28, 2023, on our consideration of NFI North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards in considering NFI
North, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

\

CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 28, 2023
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023

Assets

Current assets;

Cash and equivalents $ 8,706,555
Accounts receivable, net 4,958,173
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 190,512
Investments {note 4) 4,737,860

Total current assets 18,593,100

Property and equipment: ^
Land ^ 707,981
Buildings and improvements 10,636,204
Equipment and furnishings 783,811
Motor vehicles • 1,144,184

13,272,180
Less accumulated depreciation (6,932,838)

Property and equipment, net 6,339,342

Lease right-of-use assets 128,149
Other assets 234,994

Total assets $ 25.295,585

'  Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (note 5) $ 180,989
Current portion of operating lease liabilities (note 6) - 83,672
Accounts payable 333,177
Accrued payroll and related liabilities ^ 1,711,010
Other accrued expenses 1,130,303
Deferred revenue 14,932
Due to affiliate short-term (note 10) 60,422

Total current liabilities 3,514,505

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 5) 2,536,641
Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion (note 6) 38,993

Total long-term liabilities 2,575,634

Total liabilities 6,090,139

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions 18,842,791
With donor restrictions ; 362,655

Total net assets 19,205,446

Total liabilities and net assets ' $ 25,295,585

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(4)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2023

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions;

Revenues and other support:
Contracts, net $ 42,724.960
Contributions:

Contributed nonfinancial assets ^ 1,212,158
Other 31,280

Interest and dividends 217,234
Miscellaneous 10,775

44,196,407
Net assets released from restrictions , 171,716

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

(5)

Total revenues and other support 44,368,123

Expenses:
Program services 37,004,892
Supporting services (note 10) 4,113,110

Total expenses 41,118,002

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions before nonoperating activities 3,250,121

Nonoperating activities:
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments 249,496
Loss on sale of property and equipment (59,975)

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 3,439,642

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions:

Contributions and grants 207,812

Contributed nonfinancial assets 740
Net assets released from restrictions (171,716)

%

Increase In net assets with donor restrictions 36,836

Increase in net assets 3,476,478

Net assets at beginning of year 15,728,968

Net assets at end of year $ 19_205,446
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2023

Program Supporting

services services Total

Personnel expenses:

Salaries, payroll taxes and employee benefits $ 26,194,661 $  2,031,844 $ 28,226,505

Other expenses:

Contracted services ■  4,334,997 1,676,483 6,011,480

Other direct costs 1,648,359 226,060 1,874,419

Contributed nonfinancial assets 1,212,898 - 1,212,898

Consumables 1,030,421 - - 1,030,421

Occupancy 852,252 55,890 908,142

Transportation 678,402 26,789 705,191

Equipment 171,204 40,738 • 211,942

Interest 88,775 11,138 99,913

10,017.308 . 2,037,098 12,054.406

Depreciation and amortization 792,923 44,168 837,091

Total expenses $ 37,004,892 $  4,113,110 $ 41,118,002

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(6)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR END JUNE 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities;

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on sale of property and equipment
Net realized and unrealized gain on investment
Amortization of right-of-use asset
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Due from affiliate

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Other accrued expenses
.Due to affiliate

Deferred revenue

Operating lease liabilities

,  Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchases of Investments

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Issuance of long-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and equivalents

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and equivalents at end of year

Supplemental datar
Cash paid for interest

$  3.476,478

837,091

59,975

(249,496)

25,164

2,423,365

(57,468)

106,738

(212,895)
322,748

(36,779)
338,205

60.422

(420,810)

(21,941)

6,650,797

(565,781)

(2,416,476)

23,000

1,315,634

(1,643,623)

200,000

(162,635)

37,365

5,044,539

3,662,016

$  8,706,555

$  99,913

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
(7)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

NFI North, Inc. (NFIN) is a nonprofit organization whose purpose is to provide community-
based social services to individuals and their families. NFIN is a subsidiary of North
American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), which is the sole member of NFIN's board of
directors. Substantially all of NFIN's revenues are derived from services contracted with the
States of Maine and New Harhpshire Departments of Human Services, Children, Youth and
Families, Medicaid, Medicare, private pay, and local public school districts.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial staterhents, which are presented on the accrual basis of
accounting, have been prepared to focus on NFIN as a whole and to present balances and
transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows;

With donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be
met by actions of NFIN and/or the passage of time.

Without donor restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of
the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions. Expenses
are reported as decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Gains and losses on
investments and. other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in net
assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or
law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets with donor restrictions are reported as
reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. Expirations of restrictions with
donor restrictions occur when donor-imposed stipulated purposes have been accomplished
and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed. If an expense is incurred for a purpose for
which both net assets with and without donor restrictions are available, a donor-imposed
restriction is fulfilled to the extent of the expense incurred unless the expense is for a
purpose that is directly attributable to another specified external source of revenue.

Cash and Eguivalents

All short-term investments with an original maturity at purchase of three months or less are
considered cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of .cash flows. Cash and
equivalents within investment accounts are considered to be investments for purposes of
the statement of cash flows.

(8)



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5487D89W4FC-4967-61FB-EE35EA33DD0F

NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

NFIN carries its accounts receivable.net of an .allowance for doubtful accounts. The
allowance is determined on a periodic basis based on an evaluation of outstanding balances
for accounts over 90 days past due. Those balances deemed by management4o have
potential collectability issues are charged to the allowance for doubtful accounts. As of
June 30, 2023, the allowance was $22,855.

Income Taxes

NFIN is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) and is generally exempt from income taxes under IRC Section 501(a). NFIN has taken
no significant uncertain tax positions.

Use of Estimates

;  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported arhounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

NFIN maintains cash balances at financial institutions, which at times may exceed federally
insured limits. NFIN has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Concentration of Risk

NFIN receives the majority of its funding from state contracts that are renewable annually.
Legislative budgets could significantly impact NFIN's ability to start new programs and to
continue existing programs.

Propertvand Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, in the case of donated property, at fair
value at the date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line-method over the
following estimated useful lives:

.Buildings and Improvements 5-33.3 years
Equipment and Furnishings 2-10 years ,
Motor Vehicles 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated or amortized according to NFIN's normal
depreciation policy, except that the time period shall be the shorter of 1) the useful life of the
leasehold improvements, or 2) the remaining years of the lease. The remaining years of the
lease include the years in the lease renewals that are reasonably assured.

(9)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Self'lnsurance

NFIN is self-insured for employee medical health care costs. As of June 30. 2023, the
estimated liability for health care claims incurred but not yet reported or paid was $166,324
included in accrued payroll and related liabilities In the accompanying statement of financial
position.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value represents the price that NFIN would receive upon the sale of an asset or paid
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. NFIN uses a three-tier hierarchy to categorize those assets and
liabilities based on those valuation methodologies employed. The three-tier hierarchy of
inputs is summarized in the three broad levels listed below.

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar financial
instruments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.).

Leve/3-significant unobservable inputs (including NFIN's own assumptions in
determining the fair value of financial instruments).

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to
Level 3 inputs. NFIN utilizes valuation techniques that maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

Leases

NFIN determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. NFIN has leases under which it
is obligated as a lessee. Operating leases as a lessee are included in right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets represent NFIN's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term.
Lease liabilities represent NFIN's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at commencement date
based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term discounted using an
appropriate incremental borrowing rate. NFIN has elected to use a practical expedient of the
risk-free borrowing rate (applicable U.S. Department of Treasury risk-free treasury rate) as
the incremental borrowing rate, which is based on the information available at
commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments. The value of an
option to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent it is reasonably certain
management will exercise that option.

(10)
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NFI NORTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

NFIN recognizes revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to which NFIN
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to its customers using
the following five-step process:

1. Identify the contract(s) with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligatipn(s) In the contract
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) NFIN satisfies a performance obligation.

See note 7 for details on how the.above five-step process is applied to NFIN's contracts with
customers.

Contributed Nonflnancial Assets

NFIN receives the contributions of the use of facilities which are valued at the fair value of

similar properties available use in commercial markets. NFIN also receives contributed
goods which are value at estimated fair value. See note 8 for additional information on
contributed nonfinancial assets in 2023.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs incurred totaled $62,317
during the year ended June 30. 2023.

Subseouent Events

NFIN has evaluated subsequent events through September 28, 2023, the date which the
financial statements were available for issue, noting no events requiring adjustment to, or
disclosure in, the financial statements.

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2023, assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date,
comprise the following:

Cash and equivalents $ 8,706,555
Accounts receivable, net 4,958,173

Investments 4,737.860

Total financial assets 18,402,588

Less amounts designated for program purposes (362,655)
Total financial assets available for general expenditures $ 18,039,933

(11)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABLE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As part of the NFIN's liquidity management, NFIN maintains working capital lines of credit,
which provides liquidity available to meet general expenditures as liabilities and other
obligation come due.

NOTE 3 LINE OF CREDIT

NAFI makes available to its subsidiaries, including NFIN, NAFI Connecticut, Inc. (NAFICT),
NFI Vermont, Inc. (NFIV) and NFI Massachusetts Inc. (NFI);'a two-year term committed
facility $8,000,000 line of credit from TD Bank. The line of credit bears interest at a
fluctuating rate equal to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 1-Month Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR), plus 2.00% per annum, never to exceed 6.00%, (6.00% as of
June 30, 2023). Borrowings under the line are jointly guaranteed by NAFI, NAFICT, NFIV,
NFI and NFIN and are collateralized by substantially all of their assets.

Borrowings under the line of credit due and payable on May 31, 2024, without notice or
demand. As of June 30, 2023, there were no borrowings outstanding under this line of
credit.

In addition, NAFI has entered into Letter of Credit agreements with TD for a total amount of
$1,047,348. The Letter of Credit agreements can be utilized by all subsidiaries in the
aggregate of $8,000,000 and are not collateralized by additional cash. The Letter of Credit
agreements are a requirement of NAFI's workers' compensation carrier.

NOTE 4 INVESTMENTS

Investments are carried at fair value. Investments as of June 30, 2023 consisted of the
following;

Equities

Corporate bonds
Cash and equivalents

$ 2,389,364

2,004,207

344,289

$ 4,737,860

All investments are valued using Level 1 inputs in accordance with the fair value hierarchy,
except corporate bonds which are considered Level 2. There were no transfers between fair
value levels during the year.

(12)
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:

Mortgages payable, secured by real estate. 0.00%-8.00%
Vehicles notes secured by automobiles. 4.1%-4.5% fixed

Total long-term debt

Less current portion

Total long-term debt, net of current portion

Fiscal

Year Due

2024-2041

2024

Amount

$ 2,711,794

5,836
2,717,630

(180,989)

$ 2,536,641

Certain mortgages payable to housing authorities provide that a portion of the principal will
be forgiven at the end of the loan period if the underlying properties are used to provide
housing In accordance with stipulated conditions. In addition, certain mortgages payable
contain various prepayment penalties.

NFIN is required to maintain certain debt service coverage ratios.

Scheduled repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2024 -

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

$  180,989

181,968

269,673

195,338

333,582

1,556,080

$ 2,717,630

Interest expense was $99,913 for the year ended June 30, 2023.

NOTE 6 LEASES

NFIN is committed to annual payments under several long-term non-cancelable (except
under certain circumstances) operating leases for property, vehicles and equipment through
fiscal year 2028.

(13)
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C

NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023 ,

NOTE 6 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lease expense reported in occupancy, transportation, and equipment in the statement of
functional expenses amounted to $105,663 for the year ended June 30, 2023, the
components of which are as follows:

Lease cost:

Operating lease expense

Short-term lease expense

87,243

18,420

$  105,663

Operating right-of-use assets exchanged for lease liabilities during 2023 totaled $62,705."

Payments due include options to extend leases that are reasonably certain through fiscal
year 2028 and are summarized below:

Year ended June 30:

2024 $ 89,700

2025 / 28,794

2026 6,024

2027 4,993

2028 213

129,724

Less: amounts representing interest (7,059)

Operating lease liabilities $ 122,665

The weighted-average remaining lease term for operating leases is 21 months. The
weighted-average discount rate for operating leases is 2.0%.

NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, (ASC Topic 606). revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of the promised goods or, services is transferred in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services (i.e.,
the transaction price).

Revenues from contracts are primarily derived from cost reimbursement, per diem and
fee-for service contracts. Cost reimbursement contracts are recognized with expenses being
reimbursed for services delivered over the course of client enrollment period which is
generally as expenses are incurred.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 7 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Rate based contracts are recognized with expenses being reimbursed for services delivered
over the course of client stay based on an established rate with the related funding source
which is generally when services are provided. Revenues from contracts consisted of 22%
for cost reimbursement contracts and 78% for rate-based contracts for the year ended
June 30. 2023.

Balances of accounts receivable and deferred revenue related to contracts with customers

are summarized below:

Accounts

Receivable

Deferred

Revenue

Opening (July 1, 2022)

Closing (June 30, 2023)

$ 7,381,539

4,958,173

$ 435,742

14,932

Decrease $ (2,423,366) $ (420,810)

NOTE 8 CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

For the year ended June 30, 2023,.contributions of nonfinancial assets recognized by NFIN
within the statement of activities included:

Rent

Consumables and supplies

$ 1,136,498

76.400

$  1,212,898

NFIN recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue, Including contributions of
rent, consumables and supplies. Contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-
imposed restrictions.

The contributed space is for programmatic activities. In valuing the contributed space, which
Is located in Concord, New Hampshire, NFIN estimated the fair value on the basis of recent
comparable rental prices in the area's real estate market.

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

\

NFIN has a qualified defined contribution retirement plan for eligible employees to which
annual contributions are made at the discretion of NFIN's Board of Directors. NFIN elected

to make a contribution of $411,207 for the year ended June 30, 2023. These expenses are
included In employee benefits expense within the accompanying statement of functional
expenses.
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NFI NORTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

North American Family Institute, Inc. (NAFI), an affiliate, charges an administrative
management fee for supporting service costs that NAFI incurs on behalf of the subsidiaries.
These allocated costs amounted to $1,830,604 for the year ended June 30, 2023, and have
been included in supporting services expenses in the accompanying statements of activities
and contracted services expenses within the statement of functional expenses.

In addition, NFIN pays NAFI a property charge for usage of certain fixed assets of NAFI.
This charge was $21,284 for the year ended June 30, 2023, and has been Included in the.
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

Cost reimbursement underpayments have resulted in a balance due to NAFI as of June 30,
2023 in the amount of $60,422. This amount has been reported as due to affiliate in the
accompanying statement of financial position and is expected to be paid in one year.

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, NFIN is subject to the laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. From time to time, NFIN may be notified of potential claims or
litigation. Managerhent evaluates such claims if they arise. NFIN was notified that it was
named a party to an ongoing lawsuit. The outcome of the lawsuit is not yet finalized.

NFIN has established a reserve of $750,000 for management's estimation of-probable
expenses related to ongoing litigation. Since information regarding the case continues to
evolve, management continues to evaluate and monitor any potential impact to the
organization.
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CliftonlarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

NFI North, Inc.

Stoneham, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NFI North, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28,
2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NFI North, Inc.'s
internal control. v

A deficiency in internal control exists when the' design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

CIA (CliftonlarsonAllen LLP) Is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/dlsclalmer.
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Board of Directors

NFI North. Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NFI North, Inc.'s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditirig Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or^on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
September 28, 2023
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NFI NORTH, INC.

OFFICERS

Title Name Address

President

Suanne Nader

Educator

Treasurer

Bruce Farenwald

Retired CFO

Clerk/Secretary
Dellie Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name
Occupation Address

Suanne Nader Educator

Dellie

Champagne
Events

Coordinator/Teacher/Consumer

Representative

\

Bruce Farenwald Retired CFO '

Ashley
Wainwright Marketing Professional

Banking Industry

Teiry Lochhcad
Retired Communications

Consultant

Patricia Fillio

Licensed Clinical Mental

Health Counselor

Don Nason

Attorney

Terms: Until successors are duly elected and qualified. NOTE: No compensation for Members or
Directors As of: 1-22-24
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••] Repr&enthFINbi^'Avilh.^tep^^afKlt^^^
Vj Ovars^f^ busing de(fek>prm and ̂ ategjc 6ppo|tun(l«s

*' ''Qv«'s<^1^alionshi^ w yef^ofs. subsidiai^.iand partners-

.UnWersi^ o'flifew Hampshire^

blr^t^QfO&^railonsiCen^lfw'^

f*' ' Pben^tk^ le^e^.ip fa^START^nti Health'afti Intdle^
{•^ Ipevel^ and impi^ent sb'^gic ppe^ing^ans to align v^ UNH
(•) I Develop'Ixogrammatic o^ for, various s^te gov^mei^
<•' Memb^ of the Instilute bn'Dis^9(ty at University of New Hamp^ire managemer^ team
'•I Research ai^ Idehtifvopportunities,to leverage state and federal Medicaid and MCO'

rfur^sfbrpr^tammaticu ^ ^

•kS
MvHealth'-MvResoure^tMWRrdfTa-rfa^^ !20ds:'tftraudh:20.19:

Swe/Qpered/^Sfllcjy Ui^ySSiZ^ki}§!S8R

if;i tChieif,ppei^ys^Qff|^'rfor,Dj^ll_ity^

•I ResponsiUe for ddSy opefations and supervision of 500 full4irne st^

>j Resportsiblefor^opfiratlbnof Provider fjnctibnioper^ons.jnctudihgHCBS-tTOgrams
hc^^j ^

•"•j [Develop and oyefs^,^^ mlTion annual op;^ibrts'bu5g^ ln^dir^^
[Lead dev,^(mnient,teani^and:supe'fvise fast'(yisB|ritenrehtk)n and prevention pmgm
Texas:exMnd(^bo^dacross'the state fOT^ " "
_  {Awam ̂ne?^x^SRe<^! Services^

!•] Establish cost anafeB'of pfbgrarh op^tibns'resulting in net operationaTirwir^e.of
ijeyenu^xceecfing^lM^ ^ _

"•' 'Overeight of Hc^slhg GranH>?S'uppbrte Emplb^'entOpi^lipnsi afid Shelt^
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•  Oversight of programs funded through Health Human Services Commission, Office of the
Governorand Center for Medicaid Services 1115 Waiver

Senior Program Director of Disability Services

Program Director

Program Manager

Program Specialist

Service Coordination

2012-17

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2005-09

Education

Master of Business Administration

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology
•  Minor-Criminal Justice

Community Leadership

University of Texas-Permian Basin

Texas State University

New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Workforce Development Leadership Team
•  State

Leadership Fort Worth, Class of 2016
•  Community engagement leadership development course designed to foster civic leadership

skillsand education opportunities

Samaritan House Board of Directors

•  Board member providing support for non-profit providing support services and residential
support to individuals with HIV/AIDS, Mental Illness, and other specialneeds

MH Housing Development of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for the property management organization providing housing

supports tolndividuals with mental illness

IDD Council of Tarrant County Board of Directors
•  Board member for non-profit community group with a mission of Increasing awareness,

promotinginclusion and providing education about disabilities in the community

IDD Directors Consortium

•  Member of statewide leadership group of 39 Community Centers charged with policy
advisementand stakeholder response for more than 50,000 people with disabilities in Texas

Texas Health and Human Services STAR Kids Workgroup
•  Member legislatively appointed group charged with providing policy design for newly

implementedManaged Care platform for 180,000 children with disabilities in Texas

YMCA Soccer, Basketball, Baseball Coaching Volunteer

Henniker Youth Athletics, Assistant Coach

2013-2018

2019-present

Luke Reynard
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KRISTI wifdar;

PIWAl^ALCyERTI^i

.  fifiohciol'Repo^ing
V

•  'COStiyi^',Crf(l!t'r
Mon<^in)eni'

?  BiidQeiCreotiOfrafitl-
^' g^us

•  ̂FinorkiStSrathia^nd;
'MonffgwiSot

l» ^AKdTpjs'P^bJe'^d^
!ffece>Vo8^

PROFtU^'

•  cA'tJyfwWcltearniteadeVy/horiewydges.i^^^
i hl^d r'alfd.keeh ihtelligeix^^^ lolt^relTrrotiw te.^an
f gu tde !t e am.

'• 'Ris^aed linaHcid) prbfKSional; of
Isuccess drivmg operaUbhs.lo'rgro maxImuiHg^
itb«.erfiaehcv,

•: Insi^tfud and etifikalMBA expenerKed wilh strata
(riabmng for. and marwgerw^rahd ̂ ty^s bb

eBOFESSlONAUEXRERIENCE

^'/f*wor^;'''i^7Cpmoocc»ic.NH^^^

CHlEf.flNANOAL'OfaCER

}Rc^hingt6rccO/pfihc^l:fif^ncialleldefrreTpdirsiblecfoTdverannha^^
rolgani£>tibn's.38].mi,U$n'dp^ran1iu^'pper^dr^bu'dgyt
iNi^H^P^)fe^an^^manag|ftg;a;$t»ffjof^7.Pf^^
^opcfaltonslind'ubing bodgetcfcaiiona*^ managefneni:

•Greater NaVhuV^enTarH^jjh^e^ratC^
FEBRUARY — - —' ■

(INTERIM nNANCEMANAGERi
' ' _ *■' ^ . • tn

iReppH!Ogjp~CEp,rp!tOCjpaJflnaf^iarte>def.re$pbniibl^fof^^^
f$f8®A'?®^ip?^Vl33Wjjipn"doDai^a7:ibvaLpj«^^
inWrbfio; " '■ " ' ' ' "

[iTev AccompI1$hment«rf
•■ Provided program analyslt tp'a^lypnfuture difjxtionp^ resourctti
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iMma^liVMuniingMd fin^nicVissu^ i^HueTre^hiic^^ ̂
{ah »lYyjs,|pbficvJme^el8tions..telaiK prbdMt^y'.pfaft'
[inance^.

•  'Ci6tns6lid8.l(Ri;tnnMe$Vte8mltbT>8ve.ap'pi.w^a

Star Island CorpofaUon. pbrtinwutKiaH 2009;" ryUVYiZOlS

FiN/wcTdiREao^^^^ _ _ _
Repurung to.CEO'; prtn^ai flt^nctallei^ik responsible^fdir'overaQ'fi^ ofiKeJ
oiganQaUo'n'sJ.iinBGon.'dottar anMiroperatlngbi^get.'se^risdOCn'visrtors'a
.tlme:se8sdral.en^lOYees:8r^;additkyi8i;r^nc|al>.u|»eryjsloh.o.l S;season

Key^ccqmplbhrnchts:* _
•  Pfepaft artd'man^fyheannuarbUdgei.and;airMnanclarfop(yK8>fteeded

- Cornmllieq iBQd. Board olOifactors. •

T. Managclaccqunttng'ajid^fif^ncelssueilnduding nynlhtyc'pse.'i^cou^ AccoiwstS;
Pa^vaiaJais^li^ jo^tefpreiMtony ^
linances

•  Prcfsarc fTnanciaVmtcments'ai^^ f.^Brw^bnyrtUee and of^irefiors;
including montMy reconciliation bfrevenues'ond expenses/with appropriate variation:
rMplanatjonvar^d anahrsiSr

• ' lif f in^jwa Uo n^a ct$^8nd_afwai^
V appropriateness

•  ICeyXpntflbUqnpli^ax;|2Piir-i0l3>nd^2014y-^2pl6]
it act ICS.- • ' - — - - — ' •

•  Oeyetop^ and'ejcj^ietra weekiy-rra'triit ipiana^iep^r^ fc^ UOsea^nai hour^ sW
siiccesstutty Keep seaynal |iy5^yca5,sWin^^
tannuslly.'

•  introdtcedjeason^Wi^lv.budget'rnee.tingvw^^ updated fgi.ancUl.
information andVollaboraie on seasonal budget management^

S  Cm aiet^andtmpienwntc^^Internal contrqfantTpu/cl;^^^^
•' Maha^c;'pr^7atN^Trt^ f^rrarfiiuai wierM^

StS^I^9nd'Cb?pOTatl^r.^<^^o^H;:NH.r2D0<t;iv2008)

6U»NESS:&FIN4Na^
[Prpmqtj
i2fk%.
[Pfomote<ito'le>'dersKipfbl^upfyrnngaTlaccounting;ah'dTinarKlaiaspectspT.malnta^^^

ke'^Acwmpll:i^en
•  Created »^implerneniejF|n8iw'^^
•  sApalyied'iedwniT^^jofanb.da^Uy riteMrnpynsation

pay ncmexemptsea'yjnai staffper Kou^ ?!!!^ paym]i^«
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ii ll|e^crship..«i^.^8v't>,d«.y^'iySC^OLoUeisp'n«lp'ni^.and

«  fEni'iTried.c^^iitricV/with^iuttl.Ttanbal^sJaK^^^

•  ;Si'an lidiionlo'FinancVCor^

'i-iired io process ArcdinxU^iv't^^^ re^nii^To tlils tucutive bircddr

Kdy.AccdmplHKmen « „ ,
:  itesessed'ali accouflting pfoccdufet'and eTiminaied the;nee5 fof e«terMTKcoun»jng'f?^

<n?plp©P5tcd.cashmanjgwem;pnWocql$

accounrttructure lor efficiertcv..

•  Advbedicrealion'^Puf^&A Agent posrtlonto;cortsoM^^ stafTwoThbad an^ moVimrie"
producOvjtv;

iWotf CdacH Cd'mpa'^ (ac^lri^'tjy l3rCQnu^nlc8ddns)ri^^
'ACCOUNTAMt.;i997?il9», ^
PH1C£;.as_sistant.:iws:£i??^^^

'ffighly sMIeS in EMeifPrdnd'enrin W5 0nicclncluSrng''Powe/f^rnX'f^^^
[gisa^md MarsBgernenVReptylor;^ FinanciaiiEdge.-Fu^ U AccourTllnVP^hax

Ipayltnkand Paychex'Ontoe.PavrolVApprcnllce.!eveHnivbW:ahd.L^
iPrevfcw'eipcriehce^iri'CluickBddks.P'ro/adbPeScislrec.'ASoiyA

—- •. V 4^' 'I

G:0MMUNITy:iNV.0UV£MENT1&.V.0L-UNTEER^EXRERlENCE

l«^«rsWp'.5e«pa^wMOTter flpardof^^
|rrcasuref,^ptOT^^^^^

Ee8^f$'^Se8Coa$i7;Mmis$lon$CornrBiitee?
il^adership^SeRcoasl. Prosram Graduau.'ioliJ

f<>ijud^'fof.varibus competUipo>;'2pl3^'!20V^l
a5Tif«t'ofl nh:wA 2011,'2b is'

EOMCATLON:

(Master of fiusirwss'Adminlstrattonr Southern New Hampshire UnlversUv'.
Hf—r- •«-•.••<•.r-—'•;"■ ••• I .—.PJ-—- -r —•» 1;—'Vj .»
^Graduate Cert|f|cate1n'Accpuntlns; Southern New Hampshtre Unlyer^y

Baclwiyr^^^-Poihl^8l.ki>n^ New Hampthife
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Program Director, i\'Fl North transitional housing, Maple Lodge, Bethlehem New Hampshire. And Array
of Services. Community Based, and January 2016-2017.
Transferred to manage a residential program and pervasively mentally ill adults. Included a staff team of 10
+ and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes and supervision of staff.

- Intern, NFl North Transitional Housing—Concord January 2015-December 2015
Currently completing a 600 hour internship and providing individual therapy to three
consumers at THS and co-facilitated many groups to include; morning community
meeting, art therapy, wellness recovery actin plan, fitness, substance abuse, seeking
safety, vocational group, and community livings skills support group and coping skills. I
am currently facilitating Illness Management and Recovery group and Wellness
Recovery and Action Plan group. Competent in navigating the legal systems of
Consumers to include the NGRI status, incottipetenl to stand trial and sex offenders.
Knowledgeable around diagnosis of psychotic disorders.

Program Director, NFl North Array ofServices. Davenport School and ISO Services 2009-January 2016
Promoted to manage a residential program and school and community based ser\'ices for emotionally
disturbed adolescents. Included a staff team of 25 + and an annual budget. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations, including intake, discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal
management, hiring and terminating of staff, record keeping, training, marketing, licensing foster homes
and supervision of staff.

Program Director, NFl, Northern New Hamp.ihire Youth Services, Bethlehem. N.H.- 2008-2009
Promoted to manage an intermediate level treatment facility for emotionally disturbed adolescents.
Included a staff of 15+. Responsible for all clinical and programmatic operations, including intake,
discharge, counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terminating of staff, record
keeping, training and supervision of staff.

Assistant Program Director; NFl, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services. Bethlehem, N.M-June 2004-
2008

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall functioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis intervention.
Shift Supcr>'isor; NFl, Northern New Hampshire Youth Services, Bethlehem, N.H.- January 2002-June
2004.

Responsible for the super\'ision of assigned direct care staff and program consumers for designated shif\.

Residential Counselor; NFl. Northern New Hampshire Youth Services. Bethlehem, N.H.- October 2000-
January 2002.
Modeled appropriate behavior and social skills for adolescent girls in a residential setting. Includes tasks
such as monthly reports, writing daily progress notes and having continuous contact with guardians.

Professional Development

■  NH Disaster Behavioral health Response Teams Basic Training
The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) has developed an
organized team of behavioral health providers to respond to the mental health needs of New
Hampshire residents following disasters (e.g., bioterrorism, man-made or natural disasters)

■  PREPaRE: School Crisis Prevention and Intervention Training
The PREPaRE curriculum has been developed by the National Association of School
Psychologists (NASP) as part of NASP's decade-long leadership in providing evidence-based
resources and consultation related to school crisis prevention and response. PREPaRE training is
ideal for schools committed to improving and strengthening their school safety and crisis
management plans and emergency response.
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JPr^D i^pe Oin^aHonAct (PREA) for North.^Res|wnsihlg fnr PRFA"
'impieniaitatic^-policy making and training of staff, .^ency trainer utilis^ NFI North's*
•cunicuhim I co^train staff on.professional ̂ liudaries, Treatnient Inten-entionj'Family.systeim;

doaimeiitaHdn'ddlls'; Al^", dasig^ ̂  pres^^ at NFI North's annual conferee bii- '
''GirU finding dieirl^ice'iuid 'MaHceting yo'in services.'
;IlInes^:Manage'inent and Recbvei^' Cunbntly being'trmhed.wdwillobt^ 16 l^uf.
^Cer^^tion^on this>videnM training^
^Supported £i^1p>'mnt 2 d^'cj^fi<»tira
;M(^c;atipD traii^g
Tranma Informed peer support h^fning by SAMHSA day trai^ for the
^National Center for Traiuria Informed Care

fCADY (com^iiiities fiv'^cohol and drug fiee i^uth)1^ve panel membu for'Grafibn county's!
rfe^6rativej^ceeiq>ansiph'pm^^2013-^^^
•Grant Award<^ thrbu^ the Biuldihg.BridgM Initiatiye.'and Tnui^tioh To^Ferm^ency Project.'
:F(Kused;arpundJ^M:^i^ven''and Youth
'Grant writing wpi^hops/Nn, N^ New Hampd^'Yputh^Sg^ices mid T^Not
!Cotmt^ cooMrtn^
'Suicide Prevention Cpifferqice, YSPA of NH.
rCerhned Ib'Ctifld and ̂olesce^^^^ (<^S)
^Science Implementation
^NH.Wrapafbund

, Memi^rshlp/AlIUlAtion
iMeiut^r of/Uittricap'C^^ ^Association (ACA) Currently ExpirmI
^National'Cerfified Cbnnseior (NCC) l^CG!s fl̂ gship credential, the National C^fied
'Counselor (NCC) recognizes counselors who.voluntanly apply and successfully con^lete ngbrous;
^&Ddmd5.;THese standards arebased Snreseareti'in'tbe counseling pibfi^^ TKeNGC.ist^
;prefequisite*f6r^ NBCC s^ialtyTceHificatidns.Cufrentlirnbt reinstated,
(^Certified asbHumafi"'S«^celj-Bo1iWGertifled Practitioner (HS^BCP) l^^heCenterof
Gredentiaiimgand^ the.Natipnal Prganuatjpn'p
[Inducted into Plymouth iState Utih'ersity's Up^^qn P^-vi^ch is a chapter bf Chi Signm lota
!(C^Pi;-w^h'is aJintmmtionai counseUng^honpr soci^.,
'Bpard Pane! Meinher with lOD/NA^ to;approve Cmtific^om for, all Wrap.'iCooidinators,'

rAwafds/Ri^^itldh;
iSchplarehipA^Tdedth^l^NationalBo^/for'CertificdiCdunrelore'tafufthi^myredu^^
[at:Plymou& StaleGhiwsity. SckplaSWpra^^ $5,000.00.. ̂ _
[Nominated and relectrf'8s[pne"dftlie"40:unde_rjb^^^
;I)r' Yit^ak^^Jul&sence^ iJeadership a>T^rdA2010)
I'Cbnrage.to Growliwinid (2j^l^
|shln(ng'Stnr!(20r4)^^^ "
iSpiiitof. coinmuniityiawai^d SI^I/NAFI (2019)]
^RecpgmtioEY6irv'6lunteeriDgli££ to Ni«iHgua'(200l^ aird"Afiica (2008^)1

iReferences"'
'■ FNoel Chibman.>^UCSW (fe'fimiship; site si^ervisor) |
•  Iciiarlene Nickersoa.[N^W.(Social.woAer.at,the FeNickersoa.[MSW.(Social.woAer.at,the Federal Prison in Bmlin)

;Lbra Abniharn.'^L'CSW.'hffiA fDirectorn-rGonuiffiEity health behiaiHoral services'

teven Flvrinli (AdviwrlatiPJyinbujfi'State Uiuy^
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Noel Chipman

license

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker April 2004
-License number 1203

EDUCATION

Masters in Social Work, Simmons Graduate School, Boston MA May 2001
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology, Hartwick College, Oneonta NY ' May 1997

PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE

Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH January 1,2012-Present
- Clinical Director responsible for the overall planning, implementation and oversight of the clinical services
provided by NFI North Transitional Housing Services in Concord, Bradford, Bethlehem, Ashland and Manchester.
- Manager and supervisor of the THS Concord day treatment program and its clinical, case management, supported
employment, educational and direct care staff
- Oversee and provide individual and group therapy to consumers with severe persistent mental illness, found not
guilty by reason of insanity, incompetent to stand trial, sexual offenders and / or folks with other criminal
backgrounds
- Management and assessment of all new referrals for THS locations from New Hampshire Hospital, Community
Mental Health Centers and various designated receiving facilities and arrange evaluations when needed
- Oversee, review and approve the development of individual client centered, strengths based treatment plans
- Facilitate and coordinate clinical trainings for THS staff and agency staff
- Review of clinical records to ensure quality and compliance with state regulations and Joint Commission
standards and provide feedback and training on record keeping
- Provide the schedule and curriculum of 50-60 groups weekly and rotating quarterly as a part of a Restorative
Partial Hospitalization (RPH) servicing 40 consumers with mental health challenges
- Collaborate with program management and staff regarding the therapeutic milieu and the clinical orientation of
THS

- Facilitate new consumer interviews, quarterly reviews, client centered conferences, family meetings, discharge
meetings and other various meetings with outside providers
- Collaborate with many outside agencies state wide to ensure our THS programs are meeting the needs of our
consumers, other outside agencies and the community at large
- Supervisor for clinicians seeking licensure and graduate student interns
Transitional Housing Services, Concord NH May 2003-January 1,2012
-Experienced Senior Psychiatric Social Worker; Clinical team leader heading multi-disciplinary treatment team
- Provides therapeutic clinical services for individuals with severe and persistent mental illness
and/ or substance abuse issues, sexual offenders and forensic clients in a rehabilitative partial hospitalization
program

-Provides individual, family, group and milieu therapy
-Completes comprehensive psychosocial assessments, risk assessments, individual treatment plans and eligibility
determinations and assists with writing policy
-Facilitates and manages client centered conferences and quarterly review meetings
-Leader of interdisciplinary treatment team that meets daily to insure proper treatment and aftercare planning for
difficult to reach clients

-Awareness of legal issues including guardianships, court orders, probate commitments, conditional discharges
and revocations, which often require court appearances and testimony
-Supervision of treatment team case managers and student interns "
-Illness management and recovery train the trainer
Maul Memorial Medical Center, Kahului, HI June 2005-|anuary 2006
-Psychiatric Social Worker: Provides services for adults with severe mental illness and / or substance abuse issues
and forensic patients on a short-term inpatient psychiatric unit
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-Comprehensive psychosocial assessments, treatment plans / education plans, substance abuse screening, daily
treatment team meetings and discharge meetings
-Provide crisis intervention, individual therapy, family therapy and daily life skills groups
-Case Management service / discharge planning
Souza-Baranowski Correctional Center, Shirley MA 2001-2003
-Diagnostic assessment crisis intervention, suicide prevention and 1:1 psychotherapeutic and substance abuse
services to adult male inmates in a maximum security setting
-Comply with and adhere to institutional safety procedures in accordance with UMCHP / DOC established policies
-Case management / discharge planning
-Mental health representative for the Department of Corrections transition planning meetings
-Daily triage and segregation rounds
-Leader of a student intern support group
-Supervision of Student Interns
McLean Hospital Belmont, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001

-Case management / clinical work on an adult inpatient psychiatric unit
-Daily patient rounds, psychosocial assessments and 1:1 psychotherapeutic services
-Group therapy.Co-Leader; Adult woman outpatient eating disorder group
-Ongoing collaboration with outpatient treaters, community residences, partial hospital / day treatment-programs,
family work and completion of treatment plans
Mass. Eating Disorder Association Newton, MA (Graduate School Internship) 2000-2001
-Assessments, group intakes, family / individual consultations, and school based prevention presentations
-Evening treatment program, meal mentoring program and Co-Leader of various program groups

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- Certified Life Coach with a specialty in Organizational and Time Management Skills
- Certified Signs of Suicide Prevention and Programming (SOS) Trainer
- ANSA Certification

- Toastmasters international Speechcraft Certificate Program
- NFI Leadership Program: Completed six month program in 2014
- Certified Illness Management and Recovery Practitioner and Trainer
- Certified Supported Employment Practitioner
- Certified DBT Practitioner

- Agency trainer for Family Systems, Group Process and Counseling Skills
- NFI North Conference Presenter 2013 and 2015 '

- NAFI Spirit of the Community Committee (
- Certified Public Supervisor: Completed one-year program in June 2008
- Former NHH Assaulted Staff Action Program responder
- Former NHH Schwartz Center Rounds committee member

- Former NHH Ethics Committee member

AWARDS/RECOGNITIONS

- NFI North Agency Shining Star Award (2015)
- NFI North Agency Dr. Yitzhak Bakal Essence of Leadership Award (2013)
- Two-time gold star, award winner (2009 and 2011)
- Special recognition award winner (2005)
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PROFILE

• Moiivaied, deiermtned, personable business professional, who'ls
dedicated, diliseni and focused; Problem solver who is able, to prioritize and
multiple task, lollow through In achieving coals and vcrv much a risk.laker.
•.Oiplorhatlc and tactful within both a professional and non-professional
setting: willing and able be Introspective, assist others in building positive
relationships with those we serve and colleagues at all organizational levels.
• Accustomed to handling sensitive, confidential records; able to
'demonstrate documeniine according to accuracy, and in a rimeiy manner.
• Flexible and versatile team player open to learning new concepts quickly
while working well under pressure, and communicaiir^ ideas clearly and
effectively.
• Strong leader providing regular supervision, encouragement and tcachlhg
skills to staff merhbcrs.

GOMMUNITY'SERVIGEV
^  ̂ ./AND, - ' ■ : •:

V  ̂ VOUJNTEER:)^©^ ; ":
V • , i V ., '.S' " '

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

;CASAbf NH
^  . I* ?•

2008-2016 -

■ Tn^ee ofJriist Funds 2008*2017 :
p'BallCommissioner 2bl9-Present

'i -: ' - Ji .J,'. ",v' •?> -
NC.Chambct ofComniei,cc '2023-Pie4ent -

."•-t-i: , .• .
■ u" . - •' ••

EDUCATION

■I .

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE . /
'''a'" '; •. , • 'n ■ ^ s , 1August 2007 /

- Littleton. Nil

.  Oiltificaic '

Program .Director
June 2021 - Present

;NFI.N6rth'C6rnnnrnity Basi^ S^^ces
Rcsponsible'for'all clinical and pfograrhmatic operations, including Intake,;
discharge^ counseling, service/discharge plans, fiscal mahagefneht, hiring and
terminating staff, markcting,'and licensing of foster homes.

:Rea| Estate Agent
A'^il 2021-Pfesent
Corbn's Gateway Real Estate
Gathers, provides, end explains details of current market cbnditfbhs, pricing,
legal requirements, and similar informattbn. Assists selling clients with pricing
based on curVenl'market values. Assists cjients with staging prqjaerties for
sale; hosls.dpen houses and other promotional events.

[  " puraJcgalr

SPRIN.GFIELp COLLEGE ^ .

'  ■ , ' / - . " .n ', Pec^tw2010-• . ,, , . .
St. J6tilnsl)Uf>% V r BS in Hunw ^-rv-iqcs" ' •

^RJNCFIELD COLLEGE r

Occcjhber^12.
_;^John^n', VI' .MSinl-iuiiiajiScr\'rco

'■■■ ' ■ .U
.  • ' ' I

Program bire'ctor
Apfll 2016-June 2021
NFrNorthArrayof Se'rvlCibyDT^^port ScHdpl a>d Residch
Facility
'Pioihoied (qmanage a fu^dential piogtam and sclioul rur at-risk youtli lu.
include a Staff team of .40^ employees. Responsible for all clinical and
programmatic operations; Including intakc.'dischargc, counseling
service/discharge plans, fiscal management, hiring and terrhlnatingsiaff,.:
marketing, and licensing of foster homes
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONTD

Program Assistant Director
July 2013-April 2016

NFI North Array of Services; Davenport School and Residential Treatment
Facility
Support the Program Director in overall program operations. Oversee house
management and ensure safety of building and vehicles (supply ordering,
maintenance delegation and complete regular inspections'). Actively engage
with clients and staff to promote healthy relationships between
management, direct care staff, and clients Resporisibtc for staff supervision
and coordination of staff training

Shift Supervisor, Direct Care Counselor, Teacher's Aid^
September 2007-July 2013

NFI North Country Sheiier
Provide therapeutic Intervention services to clients using individual and group
treatment. Help coordinate and implement the curriculum for special
e'ducation.Veaching, following through with students lEP's. Responsible for
the superyi.sjon pf staff arid overseeing milieu.

Owner/Manager
April 1989-Pfesent: ^
tANSUrv Place Restaurant/Catering
Managed the pyerall performance of food service facilityahd kiicheh
operations for sixteen,years; dire.cting the recruitment. Interviewing, hiring
training, motivation and.-evaluailon of staff, Continues to.cater on an
individual basis.
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Sharon L. Bilodeau

aifeinisixator with-M of resppnsible;decisipn maldng;in:all ptees,
^ofpfpj^t imd pfbj^m mSia^merit. ih all^lj^ts of nbn'ijprofit
!nQanagemenF..Wpiked^wtively.withpm^ dl levels, sfrong wp^.et^
rwnrWing^hirlMepenf^^ S^th diveree population of people mcludihg.afges'd
fmpn^tp ejd^ ai^ aTy^^^^

I

i-Aj^i^oY Eipei^
iBud^t kdii^sttafi ^Customer Ser^nce draining and fieyelppment
JPr^am'^d PrQ^t M^ggn'^f fStaff ReCTmjfinrat ILiceosing ffid Reg^ajtc^

fAssessment and Service Phmning
{Qualifications;
• ■ i&ceptJonaliskUTi, personnel supervision'and .tiaining'program^cbbrdin^

* I A ' .. ' ̂ • t * ^ • •

Effective in budgeting and long-range planning.
(OutstMHmg'abilit^to-wdik^ith xdinSruni^ and.pfofwsional
(groups:

•. :Pro£ici^Tmprionti^giprg^^ delegatingffidmdtiyating
•; iExtensiveTexperiencetih developing pro^^s fromrcon^ tb".ongoihg^:pperatibtf
•: ^ExceUenf
•i 5E5MjeUraf'6]^ aM>\fittFu^^]^^

^el^antExp.enence.and.Sldlls:
iMahagem'ent.'^^^ Aaministratibh

'  iSupervised fiie^dkilyrbperation bTsevei^ programs'.\wtb:a;total b?,75j'
J^oplei.stSSingj^d'trai^^ râ 'e ̂ gp^s''^ being met

S rAssist^ed.in'prep^atibn an^:adnnkistratibafi^bni;$50b,0d0;t6:$2';miiti

iDesipTe'diMd in^pldnente^ Database to assist m'tracking cUeiitSi- service'
[delivervv'fp ensrireclien'tsa'tisfacHbnand'on-time^dmly prpductideliyery

•; ^Ainal}^ia'statisti(^;dataTand'c6mpiledweeldy,'^m^
(prbjectibn:reports,;Use^;da3alo;impro.yeprganiblli.pna]p.^
.^bviref'cbsfs

!Eiisu^ginon1hly{sup.eryi$ion:aud meetiugs.pro.yided.tp;;'all[empjpyees.to'
frngiTrp pi^ppri rnh~fm lin i i nn flf a 11 1 evil r'

^rganjzmg anff
Il^ated'iteri^^^biddmg^spe ev^ijSted bi^ ̂ d
jpresented recpmniiendatipns and lb;vye
Maiialied.vaRdus complex'si^^ as^nring close'duFofold sitesi
faiid th'e^re^stablishment rof. ail :ne^'systems. in'the*uew;sites,

•: !Ubordinated'yiH'.deyelpped^jn-:ser^ fining programs fo improye
rcustbmbrrs'erviceTand'ke^mg staff updated on

fu i^reated time'liiiesito.compliete special projects]
IMafKeti^und'PubUc'Relatidhs^
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•  Developed ideas for creating new projects, prioritized work and
implemented follow-up procedures resulting in more efficient and
profitable work flow

•  Conducted cold calling campaign,-acquiring new work areas for young
entrepreneurs increasing new accounts by 5 % in the first 30 days

Employment History

Program Director 2012-Pre$ent
NFI North. Transitional Housing Services

Business Development Coordinator 2010-2012
Resident Care Pharmacy, Methuen, MA

Owner/Operator Sharon's Cleaning 2010-2012
Methuen, MA

Mental Health Case Manager 2009-2010
ESMV, Lawrence, MA

Child Care Provider 2008-2009
Koryii's Kiddies, Guildhall, VT

Director 2008-2009
Safe Haven, Lancaster, NH

Child Support Services and Special Project Manager 2003-2008
GLCAC Inc., Head Start, Lawrence, MA

Program Manager 2000-2002
Greater Lawrence Mental Health Center, Lawrence, MA

Project Manager 1997-2000
NFI, Danvers, MA

Assessment Social Worker 1996-1997
Massachusetts Department of Social Services, Haverhill, MA

Program Director and Consultant 1991-1996
NFI Midway and North Country Shelters

Education

SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE, Springfield, MA 1996
Master of Science-Human Service Administration

LINIVERSITY OF LOWELL, Lowell, MA 1986
B.S. Public Service-Administration of Criminal Justice
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JEAN TEWKSBURY
eantewksburyginafi.com

EXPERIENCE

3-24-22-TO PRESENT

PROGRAM DIRECTOR. NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OVER FUNaiON, TRAINING, LEADERSHIP AND OPERATION OF THE
PROGRAM INCLUDING ADMINIStRATIVE T^KS, STAFF SUPERVISION, FISCAL BUDGET
MANAGEMENT, GROUP/INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING AND CRISIS INTERVENTION.

9-1-21-TO-3-23-22

ACTING PROGRAM DIRECTOR, NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD
Responsible for the over function, training, leadership and operation of the program including
administrative tasks, staff supervision, Fiscal Budget Management, group/individual counseling
and.crisis Intervention.

11-1-19 TO-9-1-21

ASSISTANT PROGRAM DIRECTOR, NFI NORTH-THS BRADFORD
Responsible for the over,function and pperatipn of the program including adrninVsUative tasks,
staff supervision, group/individual counseling and crisis Intervention.

2-22-2017TO 11-1-19

Assistant Program Director> NFI North-THS Concord
Responsible for the over function and operation of the program Including administrative tasks,
staff supervision", grdup/ifidivldual counseling and crisis Intervention. Fpcus on the.Residentia)
Component of the Transition Housing program by supervision staff on the job. Modeling
intervention and givirig feedback

12/2015 To 2-15-2017
Self-sufficiency Manger-Community Action Partniership of Strafford County
Provided superyisor leadership (12 staff) and over sight of the Outreach Program which
consists of Fu,el assistance;'Ejectric Assistance and Weatherliation Programs, focus area
include budget develqptment, case management and the development and delivery of
community outreach services to ensure-Fuel and Electric Assistance is reaching Strafford
County. Successfully worked closely with the Weatherlzation Team In the redevelopment
of and cultivation of a strong Weatherization Program.

12/2012 To June 2015

pirector of Programs-Young Women's Christian ̂ sociation



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5487D896-44FC-4967-81FB-EE35EA33DD0F

OocuSign Envelope ID; 9D5D6t0C-C391-448&:9F99:35889308.AFDA

Provided supervisorv leadership (16 staff) and oversight of Domestic Violence Crisis
Center, Visitation Center and You and Community'Programing. Focus areas Included

budget development, grant writing and Irhpiementation, case management,

development and delivery of community-based domestlc'viblence and sexual assault

prevention /Intervention education progra^ms. Successfully worked closely with the

Youth and Community Program Coordinator and the re-development cultivation of a

strong prevention program around Teen Dating violence and programming to both girls

and oy making healthy decision and working to prevent hi risk behaviors as well

developing leadership skills. As a result the YWCA was successful In receiving an MOYU
from the three Manchester High Schools for our Peer Action Changing Tomorrow.

2002-2,00'8

Program Director Friends Emergency Housing Program-The Friends

Program
Redeveloped all aspect of the Emergency Housing Program for homeless families.
Successfully implanted a new strength-based case management model through staff,

professional development, revised policies and procedures and improve budget

management. Instrumental in the 2010 rollout of Transitional Housing program through
relationships with allied community partners.

2019-to Present

On Call Advocate-Crisis Center of Central NH

Responsible for answering the crisis line on assigned shifts. Work with individuals who

call in for Domestic Violence support. I supply the individuals with information. Individual

counseling, support at hospitals for sexual assault cases, work with local police

departments with LAP calls and find individual's safe housing as needed.

EDUCATION

MAY 1994

BACHOLORS.OF SCIENCE-HUMAN SERVICES AND COUNSELING; LYNDON STATE

COLLEGE.

JUNE 1989

HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, HOPKINJON HIGH SCHOOL

COMMUNITY INVOLMENT/LEADERSHIP

Sexual Assault Response Team of
Hillsborough County. Committee Member

2013-2015'

Concord'Coalition to End Hornelossncss,
Bo'a/d ofpirbctors 2009-201.2
President of R^hftwlcs Varsity Football Program

Manchester HeaUh Depaitrhehi Weed

and Seed. 2013-2015

Domestic Violence Council 2015

(Played instrumental role in '

development of the council after it

disbanded in 2012)
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Erika Weir
Progressive Ncn-Profit Leader

EXPERIENCE

NFi North, New Hampshire —Program Director (January, 2022-
present)

- Ensures quality care through productive programming.

- Overlook facility safety and healthy staff and clients.

- Plans budget and maintains program budget.

- Directs operations in critical programmatic or personnel situations.

- Leads hiring and corrective action of staff

- Conducts performance stay interviews, evaluations, and salary reviews.

- Participate in employee relations including applicant screening,
onboarding, discipline, training, recognitions and celebrations.

- Oversee all staff management, training, and compliance

- Directly supervise clinical and medical staff.

- Ensure all staff are trained in emergency procedures and crisis
intervention techniques as appropriate.

- Develops and maintains positive and productive working relationships
in the community focused on volunteering and diversity

- Ensures compliance with all state and local regulations including
health, fire and safety.

- Facilitate clinical, management, and all staff meetings.

- Monitor program documentation and oversee evidence-based practices
including Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (GET), Dialectical Behavioral
Therapy (DBT),Illness Management Recovery (IMR), Supportive
Employment Training ( SEP), etc.

- Completion of all program administrative tasks including payroll,
accounts payable, accounts receivable, etc.

- Active trainor and agency representative for DEIB

- Creator of agency newsletters for DEIB and Medical Infection

NFI North, New Hampshire —Assistant Program Director

(December 2021 - January 2022)

NFI North, New Hampshire —Clinical Care Coordinator (April 2020-
December 2021)

- Provides family-driven planning and facilitation, and plan of care while
helping the clients identify strengths and needs

Education

Northern Kentucky University

Masters in Public

Administration (March 2019 -

Present)

Wright State University

Bachelors in Social Work

(August 2015 - May 2018)

Certificates and Trainings

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion,

and Belonging (DEIB) Trainer

Global Mental Health First Aid

(MHFA) for Youth and Adults

Supervisory Skills Trainer

Certified in GPR and First Aid

Child and Adolescent Needs

and Strengths (CANS) and

Adult Needs and Strengths

Assessment Certified

Strong Applied Technology

and Organizational Skills with

Advanced Knowledge in Excel,

SharePoint, Smart Sheets,

Jira, etc.

Past Projects

Program start-up for

Transitional Housing Services

Treating adults with Severe

Persistent Mental Illness

Creation and implementation

of training manual and

program for CHOICES, Inc.
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- obtains support services that are specific to client needs and while

monitoring outcomes so clients can be successful at home, at school, and
in the community.

Creation of a Youth Advocacy

After-School Program for

United Way

CHOICES, Inc., Ohio—Independent Living Program Specialist (May
2017-April 2020)

- Program management, training, and daily operations nonprofit
organization

worldng with at-risk foster youth with independent living skills.
- Development of recreational, cultural, and educational skill-based
activities for

youth through creation of community partnership relations and volunteer
management

- Non-profit resource acquisition including fundraislng, special events,

marking,
grant writing, and donor relations
- Supervise direct care staff working with youth to build life skills and
clinical

counseling on employment, vocational, housing, and educational
services. - -

United Way, Inc., Ohio—Youth Leadership Supervisor and Community
Impact Intern (August 2016-May 2017)

vy

Good Neighbor House, Inc., Ohio—Intake Volunteer (January 2016 - May
2016)

Saville Elementary School, Ohio—Social Work Volunteer (January 2015

- January 2016)
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Amy Dascanib

Obieclives

To secure a challenging position in a reputable organization to expand my learnings, knowledge, and

skills.

Education

Masters of Non Profit Leadership

Pacific University
Forest Grove, Oregon, January 2024 - Estimated graduation of January 2025

Bachelor of Science in Childhood Studies .

Plymouth State College of the University System of New Hampshire
Plymouth, New Hampshire, May 1997

Experience

Program Director, NFI North, THS-Ashland

November 2023 - Present

Responsible for ensuring compliance with Joint Commission, federal, state and local regulations and
standards. Ensures the program and services provided produce and maintain a safe and healthy environment
for consumers. Directs operations in all situations including critical programmatic pr personnel situations.
Ensure the quality provision and documentation of appropriate staff training and supcr\'ision. Participates in
agency Leadership Meetings and agency trainings as indicated as well as the strategic planning process and
committees. Participate in agency's quality improvement process. Chairs weekly
administrative/management team meetings and leads team by example.

Assistant Program Director, NFI North, THS-Ashland

March 2022 - November 2023

Responsible for assisting the Program Director in the overall ftinctioning and operation of the program,
including administrative tasks, staff supervision, group/individual counseling, and crisis intervention.
Participating in weekly staff and clinical meetings, coordinating staff coverage. Provide 24-hour, on-call

coverage on a rotating basis, facilitate and participate in program groups when appropriate, and monitor
program documentation.

Clinical Case Manager, NFI North, THS-Ashland

December 2021 - March 2022

Responsible for providing Case Management and clinical ser\'ices to assigned participants. Works directly
in treatment relationship with participants, in consultation with treatment team, which includes families,

referring agencies, case workers, and guardians. Participate in treatment plan meetings, case conferences,
court hearings and other clinical meetings. Provide clinical documentation for each participant in

accordance with agency and funding agency requirements.

Substance Abuse Residential Case Manager. Famum Center, Ray House.



DocuSign Envelope 10: 5487 D89e-44FC-4967-SlFB-EE35EA33DD0F

Franklin, NH

July 2021—November 2021

Responsible for providing clients with referrals and resources to appropriate agencies as needed. Facilitates
client communication to necessary entities during their inpatient stay; including but not limited to.-lawycrs.
court, DHHS, DCYF, etc. Works with client's treatment team to collaborate on efTcctivc strategies in
transition planning and ensuring clients have a solid aftercare plan.

Substance Abuse Counselor, Famum Center, Ray House, Franklin, NH August 2016 — July
2021

Responsible for providing treatment planning and implementation, case management and record
documentation. Provide individual and group counseling sessions to clients on a daily basis. Assists with the

• development of aftercare planning for all clients entering the program. Responsible for promoting and
participating in therapeutic community activities. Assists clients in learning and understanding the Three
Principles and how to apply them.

Targeted Case Manager, Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, NH July 2014 —
August 2016

Responsible for providing rehabilitative supports to clients in the Adult Services
Program. Assists clients to discover and maintain valued roles in the community. Interfaces within
the agency to ensure optimum quality and comprehensiveness of services. Responsible for the
monitoring of overall care of clients under assigned caseload and that care is appropriate to need,
making referrals for sendees.

Adult Targeted Case Manager. Circles of Care, Melbourne, FL
September 2010 — June 2014

Responsible for the daily case managernent of up to 35 adults diagnosed with severe and persistent mental
illness. Coordinating sendees for those individuals and advocating for them in the community. Linking
individuals to community resources. Ensuring client satisfaction by telephone calls and face-to-facc
interviews with the individuals themselves, as well as family members and community providers.
Maintaining client files and following client progress through interviews in the home, as well as in the
community.

Case Manager Supervisor, Devcrcux Florida, Titusvillc, FL April 2005 - June-
2010

Privatization of State Agency. Acted as an advocate and a mentor for staff members.
Performed all duties as previously performed as a Family Services Counselor Supervdsor.

Family Services Counselor Supervisor, Department of Children and Families, Titusville, FL, May
2004 - April 2005

Responsible for supervising up to eight employees and approximately 60 cases. Perform casework
supervdsion by assigning and trucking cases and pcrfonning supervisor reviews of those cases on a regular
basis. Ensure that all Court documentation and Florida Safe Families Network information is submitted in a
timely manner, and use various tracking systems to verify that reports arc complete.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: NFI North, Inc.

■  ' ,5 r

NAME ° -
u

JOB TITLE

ANNUAL-

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

annuaL
SALARY

r

Luke Reynard Chief Operating Officer, $0.00 $200,000.00

Kristi Vazlfdar Chief Financial Officer $0.00 $146,500.00

Jennifer Altleri Regional Director $43,660 - - $127,000.00

Deborah Weeks Asst. Regional Director $16,500 $100,000.00

Noel Chipman Clinical Director - NH $68,120 $112,000:00

Sharon Bilodeau Program Director - Concord $108,718 $108,718.00

Jean Tewksbury Program Director - Bradford $78,000 $78,000.00

Erika Weir Gintof Program Director - Manchester $76,460 $76,460.00

Amy Dcscanio Program Director - Ashland $73,518 $73,518.00

TBD Program Director - Bethlehem $76,000 $76,000.00
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Director

STATE OF NEW. HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANTSTRECT.CONCORD.Pm 03301
003.271-9544 1400-052-3345 Eit 9544

Fax:603-2714332 TODAems: l-«0O-735-2964 www.dhh*.nh,gov

May 23.2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire O3301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with NFI North, Inc. (VC#177575-B001). Contoocook, NH. to
continue to provide transitional housing services for adults who have severe mental illriess or
severe and persistent mental illness, by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the
price limitation by $6,372,800 from $4,479,800 to $10,852,600 and extending the completion date
from June 30.. 2022 to June 30. 2024. effective upon Governor and Counal approval. 100%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15. 2020, item #16
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on September 23. 2020, item
#15.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line^ms
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

0S-9B-O92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF "f^LTH ̂ D
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiacal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title ,
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$2,582,800 $0 $2,582,800

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

■$1.697,000 $0 $1,697,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
9220411,7 $0 $2,997,000 $2,997,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$0 $3,375,800 $3,375,800

Total $4,479,800 $6,372,800 $10,862,600

Vxt Departmenl o/HeaUh and Human Serwcet'Mission is U>}oin communilUs and families
in providingopportuniliet for eitiuns to aehieue health and independence.
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Hl» Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Surujnu
erxl the Honorable Council .

Page 2 of 3

^  EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue operation of a transitional housing program for
adults who have severe mental Illness or severe and persistent mental illness; are eligible for
community mental health services at a Community Mental Health Center, as defined In New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-M 401; and who no longer meet the level of care provided by
New Hampshire Hospital or Designated Receiving Facilities. With successful transitions of these
individuals to transitional housing, beds at New Hampshire Hospital and Designated Receiving
Facilities continue to be available for individuals in need of and waiting for the level of care
provided at those facilities. This request also Includes the addition of dedicated housing
specialists within the transitional housing program who will assist individuals ready to transition to
Independent living by creating plans and applying for permanent housing options.

Approximately 100 individuals vrill be served each State Fiscal Year.

Individuals, aged 18 years and older, who participate in the transitional housing program,
will continue to receive the necessary services to support and promote rehablHtation that
facilitates a transition to independent living in the community. Program services include
psychiatric services, medication management, clinical senrices, medical service, targeted case
management, specialized and co-occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment
services, and support for community connectedness and family Involvement.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services using the following
performance measures:

• Quarterly meetings to review submitted reports that outline the number of beds
'  occupied programmatic services provided to each individual, each individual's

.  progress towards independent living, length of stay for each individual served, and
Incoming casei

Annual review of the effectiveness of services measured using the Adult Needs and
Strengths Assessment, or other approved evidence-based assessment.

•  Evaluation of individual service encounter data submitted through the Department's
Phoenix reporting system.

•  Review of monthly Balance Sheet and Profrt and Loss statements for ongoing
evaluation of fiscal integrity.

•  Engagement in financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal Integrity is
maintained and programming Is meeting the needs of the individuals served.

As refererxied in Exhibit A. Revisions.to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two
(2) of the four (4) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request 76 Transitional Housing
Program beds will no longer be available to individuals in need of transitional residential treatment
services who are transitionlng from New Hampshire Hospital or a designated receiving facility to
the community which, in turn, limits the availability of beds for Individuals awaiting inpatient
hospital services across the State.

Area served: Statewide
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His Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Source of Funds; General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Arhendment to the Transitional Housing. Program contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and NFI North. Inc..
("the Contractor').

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 15. 2020, (Item #16), as amended on September 23, 2020, (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certairi sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract .Provisions, Paragraph 1, Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions, Subparagraph
1.2., the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor
and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase.the price limitation, and-
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Corttract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30,.2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

■ $10,852,600

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore.-Director

f^odify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section I.^Stale.ment of Work, by adding Subsection 1.23, to
read:

1.23. Housing Specialist Services

1.23.1 The Contractor shall assist individuals with completing applications to all housing
programs the individual may be eligible for. including but not limited to. Housing
Bridge Subsidy Program. Integrative Voucher Housing Program, and Housing -
Choice Voucher Prc^ram.

I  1.23.2 The Contractor shall.complete criminal background checks and registered crirhinal
offender check's.for all individuals,-as needed, for housing applications.

.1.23.3 The "Contractor shall collaborate.with the Individual to create a housing plan, which
.. shall include, but is; not limited.tp;

1.23.3,-1 Housing history and community ofchoice preferences.

"1.23.3,2 Barriers to housing, including Identified solutions..

1:23.3.3 initial.rental needs'and resources.

1 .'23.3.4 Benefits eligibility and status.
\

•T23.3.5 Information regarding community services as requested and .needed,
which may include,.but Is .not limited to:

1.23.3.5.1 Supportive services.

NFI North, inc. ■A-S-1.2 Contr'aclor Initials
TTT^/iun

SS-2021-D8H-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
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1.23.3.5.2 Substance use disorder treatment.

1.23.3.5.3 Behavioral health care; psychiatric health care.

1.23.3.5.4 Primary and medical health care.

1.23.3.5.5 Transportation services.

1.23.3.5.6 Resources for obtaining groceries and other needed

household items.

1.23.4 The Contractor shall assist the individual with understanding tenant rights and
obligations, fair housing laws, and the role of landlords.

1.23.5 The Contractor shall assist the individual with identifying appropriate housing and
with contacting potential landlords, as appropriate or as requested by the individual.

. 1.23.6 The Contractor shall attend appointments and meetings with the individual and the
rental agency or renting landlord to negotiate rent, utilities, lease provisions, and to
ensure the individual secures leases.In their own name, with full rights of tenancy.

1.23.7 The Contractor shall ensure successful transition to independent housing by
providing support to individuals and landlords for no less .than six (6) consecutive
months after discharge.

1.23.8 The. Contractor shall participate in monthly compliance meetings with the
Department, at the discretion of the Department.

1.23.9 The Contractor shall ensure their housing specialist participates in all trainings
conducted by either New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority or the Department,
as requested by the Department.

5. . Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 3. Subsection 3.4., to read;

3.4. For individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services they receive and
for operational costs contained In Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget, through" Exhibit C-4,
Ameridnient 2, SFY2024 Budget for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek
reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor vyill directly bill the
Department to access contract funds provided through this Agreement.

3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail indicating the Department is
only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only be reimbursed up to the current
Medicaid rate for the services provided and contain the following items for each client
and line item of service:

3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.

3.4.1.2. Date of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying date, units, and any possible third-party
reimbursement received.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 4 to read:.

4. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement-basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fuinilment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line item's as specified
in Exhibit C-1, Amendment 1 Budget through Exhibit 0-4, Amendment 2 Budget.

7. Modify Exhibit 0, Payment Terms, Section 5 to read:

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to the DeparlmeoLflp later
than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following the month in which tne^rvices

NFI North. Inc. A-S-1.2 Conlraclor Initials
5/24/2022

SS-2021 -OBH-OS-TRANS-OI-A02 Page 2 of 5 Date
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were provided. The Contractor shall:

.  5.1. Ensure the invoice Is submitted in a form that Is provided by the Department or Is
otherwise acceptable to the Department.

5.2. Ensure the Invoice Identifies and requests payment for alloyvable costs.incurred in the
previous month.

5.3. provide -supporting documentation of allowable costs with each Invoice that may
include, but are not limited to. time sheets, payroll records, receipts for purchases, and
proof of expenditure, as applicable.

5.4. Ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the
supporting documentation for authorized expenses, in order to Initiate payment.

8. Add Exhibit C-3. Amendment 2. SFY2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Extiibit 0-4, Amendment 2. SFY2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

■0$

.

NFI North, Inc. A-S'I.Z Contractor Initials
.  . ' 5/24/2022

SS-2021-D8H-03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 3 ol 5 Date



DoojSign Envelope ID; 5487D896-44FC-4967-81FB-EE35EA33DD0F

DocuSIgn Envetope ID; 9D5DBl0C-C391-4485-9F99-3586g30aAFDA

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall t>e effective upon Governor and Council approval.

If^ WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set theiFhands as of the date written l>elow,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/24/2022

Date

OeewSlgfl«4 fry;

S- feO'

Name:

Title; Director

5/24/2022

Date

NFI North. Inc.

-DACuStgnM by;

Title: Executive Director

NFI North. Inc.

SS-2021-DBH-03-TRANS-01-A02

A.S-1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been revie\A^ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/26/2022

OmwSIo^

Date Name: «obyn Cuarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ■ Name:
Title:

NFI North, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2021-DBH.03-TRANS-01-A02 Page 5 of 5 •
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STATE OF N£W HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH

mPLEASArrr STREET. CONCORD. NH (U30I

«03-27|.»944 140^2*3343 ExL »)44

Pei: 603-17}-4331 TOD Acmt: l40O'7JS-2964 inr».dhtu.oh.|Ov

Ai^usl 31, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Chiistophef T. S.ununu
and the Honorabie.Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

AuthorUe the Department .of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heafth,
to amend an existing Sole Source con^ctwithNFI North, Inc. (VCd177575-B00l). Contoocook,
NH to expand their community Transftional Housing Program for adutts who have severe mental
illness or severe and persistent mental Illness, by increasing the number of beds from sixty (60)
to seventy-six (76) and increasing the price limitation by $2,079,800 from $2.4(X),000 to
$4,479,600 with no change to the contract completion dale of June 30. 2022 effective upon
Governor and Coundl approval. 100% C^neral Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 15. 2020. Item 06.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State. Fiscal Year 2021. and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year .2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of fuivls in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
wiihin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, '
if needed and justified.

05-96-92-922010.41170000 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, DEPT OF HEA1.TH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES.
Cf«H PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal-

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,200,000 $1,382,600 $2,582,800

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92204117

$1,200,000 $697,000 $1,897,000

Sub (0 fa/ S2.4O0.(m. t2,67B.BOp U;A7B.$00

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Souite because the Department did not receive any responses to
the Request for Application, ̂ sted April 24, 2020.and closed May 15, 2020, to operate these
sixteen (16) transitional housing program beds. In the Interest of maintaining Transltional.HousIng
capaci^ statewide, and the public's health and safety, the Department has Identified this vendor
as ha^ng the capiaaty and expertise to quickly respond to the Transitional Housing P/pgrarn,
needs for these sixteen (16) beds.
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His Excellenqr. Ocvemor Chrlstophef T. Sununu
end the Hoftorebto Coun^

Page 2 of 3

the purpose of this request is expand the existing contract to Indude eight (8) additional
transitional housing program bads in the Greater Manchester Region and eight (8) additional beds
in another area in the stMe. as approved by the Department, for adults who have severe mental
illness or severe and persistent mental illness and are eligible for community mental health
services, and no longer meet the level of care provided by New Hampshire Hospital or designated
receiving faciUtieSr With successful trarishions for these patients, it is anticipated that this wilt
ertable beds to open at New Hampshire Hospital and the designated receiving facilities thus
having a positive Impact on Individuals waiting In emergency departrnents for a^bed. Indivtduals
parbdpating in the transitional housing program will receive the necessary services to support
and promote rehabilitation that will facilitate a transition to Independent living In the community

The population served ere Individuals who are al least eighteen (18) years of age and
older, have teen diagnosed with a severs mental illness or severe and persistent mental iilness,
and meet eligibility criterta.for corhrhunHy mental health services at a community mental health
center as defined in New Hampshire Administrative Rule He*M .d01. Approximately sixteen (16)
individuals will be served from October 1, 2020 to June' 30, 2022.

The .program serves the dlnical, medical, vocational, and residential needs of adult rnen
and women with mental illrtess. The program services In'dude: psychiatric services, medication
management, clinical service's, medical services, targeted case managernent, specialized and co-
occurring treatment services, vocational and day treatment services, and support for commuryty
connectedness and family involvement.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the followng performance,
rheasures;

•. Quarterly rheetings to review'submitted quarterly reports that outline the numter of
beds occupied, programmatic services provided to each indlviduai, e.acti
individuars progress towards independent living, and Incoming cases.

•. Annual review of the effectrveh^s of services will be measured using the Adult
Needs and Strengths Assessmerit, or other approved eviderice based
assessment.

•. Evaluation of individual tervice encounter data that is submitted through the
Department's Phoerlix reporting systern wnll Inforrn care moriitoring and ongoing
agency wide'quality service'monitorlng.

•  Subrhission of rribnthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements to the
Department for ongoing evaluation of the programs fiscal htegrity,

•  Engagement In fInarKial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal integr^ Is
maintained and programming is'meetlrig the needs of individuals servte.

:As referenced in Exhibit A, Revlsioris to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 1.2 of
the original contract, ttie parties have the optiori to extend the agreement for up to four (4)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement
of the parties and Gbvernor arid CounciLapprova!. The Department is not exercising its option to
reiiiewet this time.

Should the .Governor and Council not authorize this request sixteen (16) Transitional
Housing Program beds.will.no longer be available to indiw^uals in need of trans
treatment tervlces who^fe transilidnlng from New, Hampshire Hospital or a desi _
facility to the community .which; In turn, lirhlts 'lhe availability of beds for Individuals awaiting
inpatient hospital Bervices across the State.

tiona! residential

gnated receiving
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HtoCxceOency. Governor CMstopJierT.Sununu . ^
and the Honcweble Coundl

Page.Bof 3

Area served: Greyer Manchester end an'additional Mental Health Region

Source of Funds: General Funds

^Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

'Commissioner

TU'Ofpartmtnt oiHnUh dnrf Hiimon S<fyict*'Mitmn ii «>ein fonimuo/liu omi fomiliti
in pfeviding cppofl'uniliu for {ilittn$'to eehUu* htellh ond iniii^ndenet.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

State of New Hampshire —
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment 01 to the Transitbnai Housing Programs Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Transitional Housing Program contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment
01*) is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
(hereinafter referred to as the "Slate" or "Department") and NFI North. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor'), a nonprofit with a place of business at 40 Park Lane. Contoocodk. NH 03229.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 15. 2020. 016, the ̂ ntractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreerrent, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued dePvery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions.contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to arhend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:

$4,479,800.

.  2. Add Exhibits. Scope of Services. Sectionl. Statement cfWork. Subsection 1.1., Paragraph 1 1 4
to read;

\

1.1.4. An eight (8) bed Tranational Housing Program in mental health region seven (7) at the
Contractor's Greater Manchester location.

1.1.5. An eight (8) bed Transitional Housing Prograni in another mental health region as approved
by the Department In writing within thirty (30) days of contract approval.

3. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Servk^s. Section 7. Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings r
Governor Hugh Gallen State Office Park Campus, by deleting it In its entirety and replacing it to
read:

7. Use of Premises for the State Owned Buildings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Office
Park Campus

7.1. The Contractor shall use the buildings owned by the State of New Hampshire, identified
by the Department as Bayberry House., Brick House. Grey House. Pond Place East,
Pond Place West. Yellow House, and Howard Recreational Center, to provide the
Transitional Housing Program on the Hugh Gallen State Office Park South Campus in
Concord. New Hampshirg (hereinafter "premises') to provide transitional housing
services as specified in'this Exhibit 6.

7.2. The Contractor agrees-that routine building maintenance is defined as normal wear and
tear of the building slmcture. envelope, systems, hardware, and fixed assets (not
Including kitchen appliances). Routine building maintenance does not include damage
resulting in abuse or neglect by the Contractor or its agents, consumers, and visitors.

.  7.3. The Contractor shall: • '

7.3.1. Establish accounts for all utilities (Natural Gas. Water. Sewer. Waste Disposal
and Electric) in the name of the Coniractor. with NHH narned as 'secorKf* on
each utility account. Invoices for each utility shall be sent directly to. and paid by.
the Contractor;

7.3.2. Reimburse the Slate for utilities based on allocated one-third (1/3) the square
footage of the Howard Recreational Center: os

•7.3.3. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Houie|?^plng
NFI North. Ir>c. Amendmenllll Conlfflclof irtitials '
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Checklist for routine repairs and maintenance needs. The Maintenance and
Housekeeplng'Checklist will t>e available for the Hospital to review.aiid prioritize
during the monthly inspection conducted by the Hospital. Liaisons will-be the
only persons who shall contact Hospital Facilities or Environmental Services
Offices;

7.3.4. Designate a liaison to be responsible for all keys, to include distribution, tracking,
and communication with the Hospital Facilities Office for lock repair or key
replacemenl;

7.3.5. Be responsible for routine household (asks, such as, moving of furniture.
Changing light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as, toilet unclogging;

7.3.6. Be responsible tor housekeeping In accordance with checklist references in
Paragraph 7.3.3. above;

7.3.7.' Be responsible for window air conditioners maintenance, repairs, and
replacement;

7.3.8. Be responsible to call State Office Complex Pofice if there is an emergency
requiring maintenance after normal business hours;

'  7.3.9. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of household
appliances, such as refrigerators, dishwashers, washer and dryer, and stoves;

7.3.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping features
and decorations, such as gazebos, gazing balls, etc.;

7.3.11. Conduct nionlhly fire extinguisher inspections, in coordination" with Hospital
Facilities Office. Maintain, or replace (he extinguishers annually as necessary;

7.3.12. Be responsible for any darhage due to occupancy, or leasehold improvements,
including interior painting ar>d floor covering repair or replacement. In no case
shall the Contractor make Improvements without the written permission of the
New Hampshire Hospital Facilities Office;

7.3.13. Use (he Department's Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved by
the IT .Department;

7.3.14. Pay for (he personal alarm f Life Alert') system;

7.3.15. Be responsible for snow removal and dericing of steps and walkways adjacent
to the buildings;

7.3.16. Be responsible for the purchase, supply, laundering,.and management of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths);

7.3.17. Be responsible (or laundering and management of at) client personal items;

7.3.18. Ensure all buildings are reasonably maintained, kept sanitary, and clean
between scheduled cleaning inspections and services provided by the Hospital;

7.3.19. Ensure all buildings are free of pests and pay for pest extermination services If
needed;and

7.3.20. Dispose o>f recycling materials.

7.4. The Contractor shall have the right to utilize the onsite parking lots and acknowledges
that no reserved parking is provided as part of this Agreement.

7.5. The Contractor confirms the premises has been inspected and the condition of the
•  premises is acceptable.

\eU)
NFI North, Inc. Amcndmcflltll • Contractof Iniliala
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V.5. The (ionlrador shall obtain wntten consent from the State ol.New Hampsnire prior to
perfoffTiing or constructing any additions, alteralions or improvements to the premises.

7.7. The Contractor shall ensure all work, repairs, renovations, or replacemer^ts approved by
the State in Paragraph 7.3.3. are guaranteed by the vendors completing the work,
against defects resulting from the use of inferior materials, equipment or workmanship
for one (1) year from the date of comptetlon.of the work.

7.8. The Contractor shall ensure that if. within any guarantee period, repairs or changes are
required in connection with guaranteed work, which in the opinion of the State of New
Harripshire is rendered necessary as a result of the use of materials, equipment or
workmanship which are inferior, defective, or rwt in accordance with the terms of the
Contract, the Contractor shall promptly upon receipt of notice from the State of New
Hampshire, and at the Contractor's own expense:

7.8.1. Place in satisfactory condition in every particular, all gua ranteed work arid correct
all defects therein:

7.8.2. -Make good all damage to the building or site, or equiprhent or contents thereof,
which in the opinion of the State^of New Hampshire, is the result of the use of
rnalerials, equipment or workrnanship which are Inferior, defective, or not in
accordance with the terms of the Contract; and

7.8.3. Make good any work or material, or the equipment and contents of said building
■ or site disturbe>d in fulfilling any such guarantee.

7.9. The Contractor is resppnsible for al| repairs due to wear or negligence on the part of the
Contractor, Its employees, assignees, or guests.

7.10. The Contractor shall be subject to general supervision by the Slate of New Hampshire.
The Contractor shall be subject to mles and regulations prescribed by the State of New
Hampshire Including, but not limited to. meetirig the requirements of the Department's
Health Facilities Admini_slration. and the Slate of New Hampshire Public Works
Department.

7.11. The .Contractor shall protect, repair and maintain the premises in good order and
condition and shall exercise due diligence in protecting the premises against damage or
destruction by fire, vandalism, thcfi orplher causes.

7.12. The Contractor shall, at all times during " the existerice of this Agreemenli prornptty
observe and corripty with the,provisions ot all applicable.federal. stale and local laws,
rules, regulalions. and standards, and;in.particular those provisions concerning the.
protection and enhancenTent of environmehial quality, pollution control and abalernent.
safe dVinkirig water, life wfety systems and sk)lid and hazardous waste^

7.13. Should the Contractor di^.ver any violations to applicable federal, slate and lowl laws,
rules, regulations or standards, the Contractor shall report the violations irrimediately to
the Department and. at their own expense, be responsible for any costs incurred as a
result of the violation of the aforementioned federal, stale ,and local laws, rules and
regulalions and standards..

7.14.The Conlraclor agrees that any agency-of the State of, New Hampshire, its officers,
agents, employees, and .cdnlractors may enter the premises, at all times (with
reasonable notice) for any puf|X)se. Including inspection, and the Contractor shall have'
no claim on account of such entries against the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent, employee or contractor thereof.

7 15;^The Stale shall not be responsible for damage to property or injuries to personsoMiich
may arise from or be atlribuled. or incident 16 the .exercise of Ihe.privileges grar|t^fi{ighder

NFI Ndrth. lnc," Aaiendmenl fll Conlractor Initials
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■  Ihls Agreement. Including the condrtion or state of repair of the premises and.its use and
occupation by the Conlrador. or from damage to their property, or damage to the
property, or injuries to the persons of the Contractor or any officers, employees,
servants, agents, contractors, or others who may be at Ihe^premlses at their invitation or
the invitation of any one of them arising from governmental activities at the premises.
The Contractor expressly waives all claims against the State of New Hampshire for any
loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring by reason of or incident
to the posMssion or use of the premises or as consequence of the conduct of activities
or the performance of responsibilities under this Agreement.

7.16. The Contractor agrees, to indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the State and the
State of New Hampshire, their officers, employees and agents from and against.all suits.
claims, or actions of any sort resutiing from, related to or arising out of any activities
conducted under this Facilities Use Agreement section and any costs, expenses.

'  liabilities. • fines or penalties resulting from discharges, emissions, spills, storage,
disposal or any other action by the Contractor giving rise to liability to the Stale or the
State of New Hampshire, civil or criminal, or responsibility under federal, state or local
environmental laws. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement and is not Intended to waive the Stale's sovereign immunity, which is hereby
reserved by the State.

7.17. The Facilities Use section of this Agreement is effective only insofar as the rights of the
Contractor in the premises involved are concerned, and the Contractor shall obtain such
permission as may be necessary on account of any other existing rights.

7.18. The terms of the Facilities Use section of this Agreement shall not be transferred or
assigned. The Contractor agrees that on the Completion Dale of this Agreement, It shall
vacate the premises and shall, remove all personal property and restore the premises
to a condition satisfactory to the State, with damages beyond the control of the
Contractor and due to ordinary wear and tear excepted. If the Contractor neglects to
remove their personal property and to so restore the premises. then at the option of the
State, such property shall either become property of the State without compensation
therefore, or the Stale nr^ay cause property to be removed and the premises to be so
restored at the expense of the Contractor, and no claim for damage against the Slate or
its officers, employees or agents shall be created by or made on account of such removal
and restoration work.

7.19. The Contractor and the Stale agree that no notices, orders, directions, determinations,
requirement consents, or approvals under this Agreement shall be of any effect unless
ii js in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be addressed to
the State:

New Hampshire Hospital
Alln: Director of Facilities.

36 Clinton Street
Concord, NH. 03301

7.20. The Department's New Hampshire Hospital shall:

7.20.1. Conducl scheduled preventative maintenance inspections and repairs for all
equipment to include, healing and cooling systerris, sump pumps, plumbing
fixtures, drains, and bacKflow preventers;

7.20.2. Replace, as needed, equipment to include, healing and cooling systems,
sump pumps, plumbing fixtures, drains, backflow preventers, and generators:

7.20.3. Maintain all electrical wiring and related hard-wired lighting, recep^e^and
panel board fixtures; I

NFI North. Inc. AmendmeniPl Contraclw initials ___
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:  7.20.4. Maintain all fire prelection related equipment, except fire extinguishers;

7.20.5. Respond to requests for routine maintenance during normal business hours.
Monday through Friday 7:00 AM - 3:00 PM;

7.20.6. Respond Immediatety to emergencymaintenance requests that threaten the
health and safety of consumers, staff, and property as needed, twenty-four
(24) seven (7) days per week;

7.20.7. Tour each building as needed, or requested to inspect the building and to
review and prioritize the Maintenance Checklist developed by the Contractor
Liaison;

7.20.0. Provide monthly testing of each generator and egress lighting, and provide
the Contractor with written documentation of the testing and results;

7.20.9. Conduct fire drills in accordance with applicable compliance regulations, and
provide the Contractor with written documentation of the test and resulls;

7.20.10. Conduct sprinkler inspections in accordance with applicable local. State, .and
federal regulations, and provide the Contractor with written documentation of
the lest and resulls;

7.20.11. Stale Office (Complex Police will provide Police Coverage and Protection
including Life-Alert;

7.20.12. Monitor Transitional Housing Services environrnent via the building
automation system;

7.20.13'. Clean kitchen exhaust ductwork on an annual basis; and

7.20.14. Maintain tocks and replace lost or damaged keys at a price to be determined
by the Hospital.

3.4. The Department shall provide ground maintenance, defined as the following:
•7.20.15. Mowing of lawns;

7.20.16. Trimming of bushes and shrubs;

7.20.17. Plowing of roads; and

7.20.18. Maintenance of trees.

'  4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3. Subsection 3.4., to read:

3.5. For individuals without health insurance of other coverage for the services they receive,
and for operational costs contained in Exhibits C-1. Budget. C-1. Amendment 1.
Burfget. C-2. Budget arkf C-2. Amendment 1. Budget for which the Conlractcr cannot
otherwise seek reimbursement from an insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor
will directly bill the Department to access contract funds provided through this
Agreement.

3.5.1. Invoices of this nature shall include general ledger detail ir>dicating. the
'  Department is only being invoiced for net expenses, shall only be reimbursed

up to the current Medicaid rate for the services provided and contain the
,  . following Items for each client and line item of service:

3.5.1.1. .First and last name of client.

3.5.1.2. Date of birth.

3.5.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3:5.1.4. Dale of Service identifying date, units, and any possible t^<^arty
reimbursement received. ^ I rW/

NFI North Ir^c Amendmenl »1 Contractor tnlllals
■  / ^ , 9/2/2020
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b. Modity Exhibit C-1, Budget and replace in its entirety with Exhibit C*l, Amendment 1 Budget, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2. Budget and replace In its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1 Budget, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

p
NFl North. Inc. Atrieridrnehl ConlractOr InlUals •
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon (he date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services-

9/3/2020

Date Name' Cnnstine Santaoieiio
Title. Director

9/2/2020

Date

NFt North. Inc.

OwaSOnM ty;

pAul pAlAU,

Name; Paul oann

Title:
Executive Director

NFI North. Inc.

SS-2021.D8H-03-TRANS-01-A01
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The preceding Amendment, haying been reviewed by this ofTice, is approved as to form, substance, and •
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
«

9/3/2020 I
A olf-mauiyMfc,

Date Name: Catherine (>inos
Title. Attorney

t hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date' Name:

Title:

NFl Nofth. Iix. Amendment PI
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STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OmSlON fOk BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

)]9PLCASANTSTReCT.C0NC0Rl>.NH 03301
«0yri\9i44 l-WOASAKS EiLtS44

Piittti-niAU] TDDAcccb: l400-T)5-m4 wvwJkhub^

June 23. 2020

His ExceHency, Governor Chrlatopher T. Sununu
and the HonorBbia Councfl .

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health artd Human Services, Division for Behaviora) Health, to
enter Irrto a Retroactive, Solo Source contract with NFI North. Inc, (VCdt77S75^001).
Cohtoocook. NH In the amount of S2.400,000 to provide a corwnunlty Transitional Houslrtg Program
for edulia who have severe mental Illness or severe and persisterrt mental il)r>eds. with the option to
renew for up. to four (4) additional years, effective retroactive to July 1, 2020 upon Governor end
Couno'l approval through June 30. 2022. too % General Funds.

Funds ere available in tho following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are antidpeted
to be dvaltat>le in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust bu^et line Kerns within the price limitation
through the Budget Office, if need^ and justified.

05-9S-92-92201(MI17 HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OfV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. CMH
PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class THlo Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 ' Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204117 $1,200,000

Subtotot $2.<00,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because In the Interest of^the public's health and safety..the
Department has identified this vendor as having the capacKy to quickly resporvd to the Transiiionoi
Housing Program needs for eixty (60) beds. This request is Rotroacttvo because this abrupt change
in the Department's strategic approach led to additional r^egotiations. which delayed the execution
ofthe conlfQCt.

The purpose o1 this request is to operate transrtional housing program(B) for adults who have
severe mental illness (SMI) or severe end persistertt mental illness (SMPI) and ore eligible for
community mental health services and no longer meel the level of care provided by New Hampshire
Hospital (NHH) or Donated Receiving Facilities (ORF). Wilh successful iransftions of these difficult
to place patients, it is antidpated that beds will open at NHH and the ORF(e)), thus having a positive
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Hi) Excellency. Governor Chrotopher T. Sununu
end U^eHonorabie Council

Pa8e2of2 .

impact on Individuels waiting in emergency departments for a bed. Patients paitidpatrng in dte
transttlondl housing progiam wlll receive the necessary eervlces to support end promote
rehsbitilatlon that wit) facilitate a transit]^ to Independent irvirrg in the cornmunlty.

The population served are individuals who ere at least elghieen (18) years of age and older
and havo been diagnosed with a SMl or SPMI and mast eOgiblDty criteria for community mental
health services at a community mental heelth center (CMHC) as defined in He-M 401. Approximately
60 individuals win be served from July 1. 2020 to Jurw 30. 2022.

The program serves the dmlcai. medical. vocBiionai. and residential needs of adult men end
women with mental IDness. The program senrlces. Include: psychiatric servlcea, mietfcallon
management, dinica) services, medical services, targeted case management, spedaKzed ar>d
occurring treatment services. vocatiOTal ar)d day treatment services, end support for community
connectedr>ess artd family involvement.

The Oepartment vrill monitor contracted services using the foHowing performance measures;
• Quarteriy meetings to review subbed quarteriy reports that outline the number of

beds occupied, programmatic senrices provided to each individual, each irtdividual's
progress towards independeril living, and incoming cases.

• Annual review of the effectiveness of services win bis measured using the Adult
Needs and Strengths Assessment, or other approved Evidence Bailed
assessment.

•  Evaluation of Individual service encounter data that Is submitted through the
Department's Phoenix reporting system vriD Inform care monlloring and orrgoing
agency wide quality service irionitorlng.

'• Submission of monthty Betance Sheet and Prefit and Loss Statements to the
Oepartment for ongoing evaluation of the programs fiscal integrity.

•  Engagement in financial and programmatic audits to ensure fiscal :lntagrity Is
maintained.and programming is meeting the needs of (nd'rvlduals served.

As referenced in Exhibit 0-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Paragraph 2 of the
attached oontrad. the.parties have the option to extend the agreement for up four (4) additional
yesrs, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties
and Governor end Coundl approval.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authorize this request the sixty (60) bed Trarvsitfonal
Housing Programs may not be available to individuals in rteed of transitional residential treatment
services' Who are trensiUonlr^g from NHH or e DRF to the community which, in turn. (imHs the
availatxilty of beds for individuaiB awaiting cripatient hospital services across the State.

Area served; Statewlda

'  Respeci^ily submlttr

I A. Shibinette

"Commissioner

Th4 OtfierUitnt»/ HtatJt and HumoA SffMen'MtAton i* <0 JoiA ammunilin tuid /omilitt
in firovidinf epportunilUi fo' ciJtK'U to 0cAiti« hnlOi end indtptndtntt. •
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FORM NUMBER P-37(««nl«8 11/11/1019)

SabJcct:_Transilionel Housing Programs ($S>302l -DBH>03<TRAN$-OI)

Noiict: T>li asrtmmi tnB til of iu insdimcnu thsl1 become public upon wbmtsipn (o Cmcmar cnd
CaccuilW Council for ippro«iil. An)- inrormition (hq li pri««te. conriOcnlisI or proprios/y miui
be cksfljr tdentiflo} (O the egmcy trd tt'ccB lo in wfitsnt prior to ilsning the conna.

ACRtEMeWT
IheSuK ofNowHsmptltireenOnx Cennoor hacby muivtlly tgrcc u followi-.

CENERALfROVISIONS

I. IDtNTIFICATIOri.

I.I Stsu AgencyNarn*

Ntw Hampmirv Deparanmi of Kqlth an4 Human Serrica

1J Srtte Agency Addrctt

l?9 Pleuvti Seeci

Concord. HH OlMI.3157

1.) Contrtaer Hime

NFlNorcMw.

1.4 Centracer Addroj

40 Park Lane

Contoocook. NH 03229

1.5 Contrieior Ptiona

.Number

{603)746-7550

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92.9320IO-

4117

1.7 Completion Dote

June 30.7032,

l.t Ibice Limitation .

$2,400,000

1.9 Ccvicraaing ORiccr Ibr Siste Agency

N»Oi«n 0. While, Oirccior

I.IO Suta Agotcy TelcpTtonc Nisnber

(603)771-96)1

I.I l^eoi«j;i4g»SI|n«ure>--s^

'  > Oeu: |?t3
1.1^ Nime qtd Title of Conmuor &0uiory
tb-.i L.

- '^ CoT» /t_
I.I) Siilb Agency Signature 1.14 Heme tndTiile ofSute Agency Signatory

1.15 Appro«a)by UtC N.H DcpUOnenI ofAdcninittnUion, Divuion ofPcraonabl

>
By: pireciof. Ott:

1.16 Approval by thc'AnorBcyCtneral (Form. Subslanec and Execution)

0e/2S/20

1.(7 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (\fepplkchli)

CibC iiem number: G&CMedingDaic: . .

Page I of4
Contracior Initials

Dale
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2: SERVICES TO BE PCR/ORMeO. The Stve of New

Hampthirc, tcting through (he ftgcncy identified in block I.I
fStite"),. engages contrecior ideniified in block 1.3
f Conaocior") to perfonn. and the Contractor iha]l perform, the
work or iaie of goods, or both. Idehtifipd trtd mere puiicularly
described in the aitichcd EXHIBfr B which is incorporated
■herein by reference CServico")..

3. EFFECTIVE pATE^OM?L^tpN OF SERVICES.
3.1 Korwithsunding any provision of this Agrcemem to the
conirtry, antV aubjea 10 the approval of the Covernor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire', ifappiicibie.
this Agreement, and all obligations of IhcpMies hereuntlcr, shall
become efTcctivc en (he date the Governor and Executive
Council approve'(his Agreement is ihd'tcatod in Noek 1.17.
unless no i^h approval is required, in which .case (he Agreement
tholl bdcome cfTcaive on the date the Agreement is siped by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 C^l^octivc' Date").
.3.2 If the Contractor commcnca the Services prior (0 the
Effective bale, all Services performed by'ihe Coitraaor prior 10
the EffMi.ve Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Cortcractor, and in 'iht event that this Agreement does rto< become
effccilve, the State shall, have rio lUbiliiy (b the Contractor,
inclining without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor' for any cosu Incurred or Services performed.
Contraadr must complete all Sayi^ by (he Completion Date
•pecificd in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF ACRECMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of dtis Agreemeni to the
contrary, all obligations- of the Stale h^eurtder, including,
without limiution, the continuance of poymenu hffcundcr, are
contingent upon the avsilabiliiy arvd corttinued appropriotion of
funds afTcctcd.by any state or rcdcrdl leglslaiive or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
.appropriation or'ovaila^bility of firhdihg for (his Agrdenwi and
the Scope for Services provided in.GXMJBrr-'B. in'whde or in
pen. In no event shall the State be liable for any paymcnu
hereunder in ie.<(Ccss'ol[such''avaitible appropnaied fymds: In the
event of 9 redwcrion or termination of appropriated .fiiRds. lhe
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such fiinds
become availdblc.'i.fevTr, end (hajrhave the rlghi to reduce or'
icmiinate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
'giving the Corttractor norice'of such reduction or taminat'on.
The Stoic shall not be required to'tnnifcr funds from any other
'CMOuni or source 10 the Accouru identified in block 1.6 in the
.event funds in that Accoy.nl ore rcdirccd or unavailable'.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, end toms ofpayment
,aie'idm||fied and rnore partictdarly d.aaibdd in' EXHIBIT C
which is incorporaied herein by reference.
5.2 The puymeni by the State of ihe oontraci price shall be (!>e
.only and the complete reimb'ursenieni 10 the Contra'eior for'all
expenses, of whatever rtalurc incyned by Ihe^Coniractor in the
perforrnance haeof. and. shall be ihe'only end the corhplete

compcrtsition to the Contractor for the-Serviccs. The State tfiall
hive no liabiliry to the Contractor otha than the cpntract price.
5.3 The State reses>o the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contreaor under this Agreaneni those
liquidaied'amounts required or permiit^ by N.H. RSA tO:7
through RSA 80:7< or ^y other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithsurtding any provision in this Agreemeni to the
conirary, orvd noiwithsunding unexpected c'tfnmstances. in.no
event shall the loul of all paymenu authvized. or actually made
hcmmder, exceed thk Price Limiiaticn set forth in block 1.8.

i. COMJ'LIANCE BV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPOHTONITY.
6.1 in connection with iha pcrfornioncc of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all applicublc statutes, latvs,
regulations, and orders of fodcrol, staie, mrnty or municipal
authorities whi^ impose any obligation or duty upon the
Concrsdor, includirtg, but not iimhed to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. Jn addition, if this Agteemeni is
funded in any pert b)* monies of(he United Sc&tcs, the Contractor
shall comply with oil federal e.tccviive ordcr>. rula. regulaiions
and fi ttvtes, and with oriy rules, regulations arrd guidelines as (he
State or the United States issue to implcmcni these regulations.
The ConOBCtor shall alto comply with all applkabie intellectual
propettj' laws.
6.3 During the tcmi of this Agtetmcni, the Convuctor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for cmploymeht
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orieniaiion. or notional origin and will t^e affimtaiivc action to
prevent such diso-iniiraiion.
6.3. Ihe Contractor ogrees to permit the State or United States
access lo'any of the Controclof's books, records and accounts for'
Ihe purpose of asccnainlng compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agrecmoti.

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 Ihe.Cqncracior shall at its owii expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform Iha Saviocs. The'Concntcier warrants
all personnel engaged, in the .Services shall be qualified 10
perform the Services, and shall be .properly Ikthsed arid
otherwise authorized to do SO under all applicoble laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing dur'm'g the term of
this Agreemeni, and for a period of .six (0 months oflcr the.
Completion Date in block 1.7, (he Contractor shall not liire, and
shall not permit any subcontra'cior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is.engaged .in o combined efTort (0
perform (he Services lohire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTieial. wtio is moier.ally involved iit 'the prbcuremeni.
adm'misrration or- performance of this Agrecmerti This
provision shall surviN-c (ermihition of this Agrecihcnty
7.3 The ContTBCling Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the'Staie's represenint ive. In iho event of eny
ditput'e bonccming the inierpreialion of ihis; Agreemeni. the
Contraaing Officer's decision shall be fi nal for the State.

Page 2 of4 C^niracior Iniilats -te-
pa'c s inj?^
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S. EVENT OF DEFaULT/REiMEOIES.
8.1 Any one or more'.of ihe following tcts or ofnijaionj of the
Contnaor ihAll cooslmte in evvni ofPef^uli hereunder CEvent
ofOeliuti"):
8.1.1 foilure to perforrn ihc Scfvica latijfcciorily or on
schcduk;

1.1.2 blKire (o submit my report required hacunder; ind/or
8.1.3 foilure to perform shy otha covcnmt. tmn a condition of
this Agreonoit.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of my Event of Oefiuhi the Sut< moy -
take my one. or more, dr all, of (he foilo^ong octims:
IJ. 1 yivc the Controaor a uiincn notice specifying (he E*«nt of
Default ind requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or loser spcciRcoiion oflime. thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Eventof Default is not timely cured,

,terminete iltii Agreemcni. effeaive two (2) days ofto giving the
Contractor norice of tcrmtnalion;
.8,2-2 giw (he Coniraaor a written notice specifying the Event of
Oefauli and suspending ill payments to be made under this

■Agrccmmt and ordering that the partron of (he contnci price ^
-wtiich would otherwise accrue to the Conrractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the Suit
detcrmina that die Contractor has cured the Event of Dcfiuli
shall never be paid (o-the Conrraaor;
8:2.3 givo the Ccntrpctor a wrjticn notice specifying the Evcni of
Default And set off agitnfl my other obligaiions the. State may
pwc to the Contractor my damages the Suie tuficrs by reason of
my Event of Dcfauti; end/or
8.2.4 giMiheConiruior a ^inmntxicc'specifying the Event of
pcfault, treat the Agreerhtni as breached, tominaie the
Agreement and pursue any of iu remedies.at law or in equity, or
both.
i8.3. No foilurebyihe State to enforce any provision's hereofaOcr
my Event of Default shall be deemed a woiver ofia rights with
regard lu that Event of De^lt, or my subscqumi Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed'a woiver.of the righi.of ihe.^ic to enforce each.and
all of the provisions hcoof upon my furtha or other Event'of
Default on (he port of (Kc Contractor.

9:teRMINAtlON.
9.1 Nqrwithjtanding f^graph 8, the State m»y. at itj sole
discretion, terminate the A^ecmeni for any reason, in whole or'
tn pan,.by thirty (30) days wrjnen notice to ihe Conirocror that
(he State.is cxocising its option to tcrrhinaie the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of m early icrminaUrm of this Agrcemcm for
my rcuson" oth® thm ,ihc' completion of the Services, the
Conlrector shaJI. et the State's disoetion, deliver to the
Contrecting OfTicer, not later than fiAeen (15) days aflcr the date
or.termirtttiqo, a report CTerminaiion Report") describing In

-detail, ell Servica performed, md the contract price earned, to '
and including the dale of lerrhlnaiion. The' form, subject matter,

.content, md .number of copia of the Terrnination Report piotl
be identical to ihoac ofmy Final Report described in'ihe srtached
CXNIQlT B.Jn addition, at the State's dtsoretion, the Corttractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early icrminailpn, develop md

Page

submit to (he Stale a Transition Plan for tcrvi'ea undm-the
Agreement. ^

10. DATa/aCCESS/CONFJDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mmn all
informaiitm md things developed or obtained during the

.poformance.of. or acquired or developed by rcasm of. this
Agroemeni, including, but not limited to. oil studio, reporu;
fi les, formulae. survcA tn®pt. charts, sound recordings, video

.recordings, pictorial rcprodulaiortt, dra^vings, anaiysea, graphic
representations, comput® programs, comput® prlniouts. n®(s,
letters, mertsorunda, pupen, md documents, all Wheth®
finished or unfinished..
10.3 All data and any property which has been receiv^ fi^p
the State or purchased with fimds provided for that purpose
under thU Agreement, shall be the property of the State, md

. shall be rcttimcd to the State upon demand or.upon ttfmirxaiion
of (his Agrconent for my reason.
10.3 Confrdentialityofdita'shall be goverT>ed byN.H. RSA
chapi® 91 -A or dth® misting law. Disclosure of data requiro.
^ior written Approval of the SlOc.

11.CONTRACTOR'SHELATION.TOTHEStATE. Iniha
perfortnAnce of this Agreement the Coniroaor is in all respcat
m independent coniruaor, »md. is ncith® m Agent nor an
enplo)<e of tha Sute. Neither the Cmtraaor nor my of iu
ofTicers, employea. agenb or members shall have ouihoriiy to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compcntotion or
oth® emoluments provided hy the Sate to iu employco.

12. ASSICNM ENT/DEtKCATlON/SUBCOf^RACTS.
13.1 '^e Contntctor shall not assign, or oth®wise transfer ony.
interest,hi ihis'Agrecmeni without the prior written notice, which
Shall be provided (u the State at least fi fi etn (I5)da>'s prior to
ihc-assignmcni, md a written consent or'tht'Sate. Fv purposes
of this pvo^aph. a Change of Control shall ccntUtute
assi^meni. "Oimge of Control" meuns (a) me^w,
convolidttibi, or a timsoctionqr s®ies of related tmnsaoions in
^ich a third party, toged)® with Iu ofTiliata, becomes'the
direct or inditca owner of fi.fly percent (50%) or more of .ihe
voting shores or similar equity ini®au, or coimbined voting
povtcf of iho Cofttrtjciof.^or (b) the sale ofall.or subsianiiatly dll
of il^ a^s of the, Contrucior.
12.2 .None of the Services' shall be subcontracted by the
Contraaor wiiSooi prior written notice end consent bfihe Sute.
The Stale is ®iiiilcd to copies ofell subcontracts and ossigisinenl
agreements and shall not be bound by my provisions contain^
in'a sybconirt® or on asiignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION., Unless oih®wisc exempted by law,
the Corttruoor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
oHiccn tihd employees, from and against any and oil claims,
liabilities end costs for mypcrional injury or pr^erty damages,
patent or copyrighi inCringemmt. or oth® deims assenctf against
the State, iu olTicoi ofwnployw, which vise out of (or whkh
may be claimed .to vise out of) the acts or 'ontission of the

3or4 I

Gontractor Iniiials
Dote 6ji
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Coftcroctor; v cutcontreciort. includini bu) not Ibnitcd to the
nesli^mce, rcdilos or inioitiotul conduct. The Stile shall not
be liable for any costs iiKurred by (he Contrector arising under
thispangrtph 1). NotvntMtandingthc fnregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be dccmod (o constitute o waiver ofche sbvcrcipi
immunity of the Sonc, whkh immunity is hneby reserved to the
Sine. This covenant in pani9«ph 13 shall survive the
tcrmtnaiien of this Agreement

M. fNSURArtCC.

U.I The CoRO-aeior shall, at iu sole expense, obtain mk)
continuously mairtiain In fbicc, and shall require ony
subcontraoor or assignee to obuin and maintain in fofce, the
following insurance;
U.1.1 commercial tcneral liabiliiy insurance a^ino all claims

of bodily injury, death or prope^ damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000,000 pa occurrau and. S3,000.000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.3 special muse of loss comage form covering all properry
tubjeci 10 subpare^aph 10.2 herein, in sn amount not less than
10% of the vthole rcplacahani value of the property.
14.2 Thepoliciet dacribod in tubpartgnph 14.1 hacin shall be
on policy forms and endoriemcnts approved for us« in the State
of New Hampshire by ihe^N.H. Oeportment of Inturance.'artd
issued by instrcrs licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
U.3 The Contraaor ahaij furnish to. the Contacting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor', a ccrtificatcfs) of
insurance for oil intumnoe roquircd undo this Agreement.
Concractor shall also fumisli to the Convicting Ofltccr tdentified'
in block 1.9, or his or ha successor, cenificatefs) of instance
for all renew3l(s) of insurance required unda this Agreement no
lata than ten (10) days prior to thc'cxplrttion date of each
insurance policy. - The cenificaicfs) of insurtncc and cny
rene^vals thereof shall be attached and ore incorporated herein by
refaoicc.

15. VVORKETRS'COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, (he Contractor agrees, ccnifto
and watrenu that the Caitraaor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the rcquircmcnu of N.R RSA chopta 281 -A ("Wcien'
ComptnTOJion").
\52 To'the extent the Contractor issubjca to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapta 281-A. Conimaor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor at assignee to secure and mainuitn,
psymchl of WorVos' Compcruation in connection with
activities which (he person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. 1'he Cotirticicp' shall furnish the Corttncting Offica
idcnii Tied in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workm*
Compensation in the manna desaibed in N.H. RSA chapia
28I>A and any applicable rcncwiift) (hereof, which shall be
attached ond are incoiporsted herein by reference. The State
shall not be raponsiblc for payment of any Workers*
Compenuiion prerniums or for any other claim « benefit for
Conoaetor. or any subcohoactor or emplo)^ of Contractor,
which might arise unda applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers; Compenuiion laws In conneaion with the
paformance of the Scrvica unda this Agreement

Id. NOTICE* Any notice by a party hacio to the otha party
thall be deemed to have beoi dulydelivaed or given at the time
of moiling by cenified mail, posuge prepaid, in i United Stales
Post Office iddressed to the partia at the addresses given in
blocks IJ and 1.4. hereto.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by on instrument in writing ligned by the
parties haeto and only afla approval of such antmdmeni,
(vaivcr or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of.
(he Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the chcumsionces pursuant to State bw. rule or policy.

18. -CKOICe OP LAW AND PORUM. TM* Agraemeru shall
be govremed iniopraed and construed in eecerdance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit ofihe partia and their respective succasors
and assigns The wording us^ in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of consiruaion shall be applied agpinsi or in Cavor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be broujj^t and
maintained in New Hampshire Suparor Court which iholl have.
exclusive jufisdictionihacof.

19. CONFLICTINC TERMS. In the event of a conflici

between the tarns of this P-37 fiym (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/a aRachmenu and tmendmmi thacof, (he loms of the
P'37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD Parties. The pania hano do na intend to
benefit any third partia and this Agreement shall not be
construed to cortfti any such benefit.

21. HF.AOINCS. 13ie headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the vwds contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modily, ampli^ or aid in the
intaprctation. construction or meaning of (he provisions of this
Agreement.

22. special provisions. AddiliortSl or modiVmg
provisions set forth in thcanached EXIflOIT A ore incorporated
hocifl by reference.

23. SEVRRaDILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agreement are held by s eoun of compercnt juri.tdictiorv to be
contrary to any state v federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in hill force ond rffcct.

24. ENTIRE agreement. This Agrccmt/U, which rr^y be
executed in a numba of countaports. each of which shall be
deemed an original, constltuta the entire agreement and
undaitonding between the panics, and superseda ail prior
agreements and undcrstarvdlngs with rapcct to the subject matter
haoof.

Page 4 of4
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EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P*.37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows; '

3.1.' Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor end Executive Council of the
Slate of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
ail obligations of the parties hereunder; shall become effective on July 1,
202.0 fEffective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as foitows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up (b four (4) additional year(s)
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory deli\^ry of
services, available funding.'.agreement of the parties, and approval of the
-Governor and Executive Couridl.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assigiimenl/Oelegatlon/Subcontracls, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3. as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subjecl to the same contractual conditions as the
Cbntraclor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor-
compliance with those conditions. The CbnUactor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the siubcontractor's
performance (S . inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on en or^oing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a lisi of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-}03i-OBM-03-Trw<S-ot A ■ RevUloa lo Coriita Prowttlens ConVtcto' irltUJ}
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Exhibit 6

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure services are available In the following Mental Health
regions:

-  l.i.l. A forty (40) bed TransKiona) Housing Program on the grounds of Governor
Hugh GaUen State Office Perk Campus in Concord. New Hampshire.

1.1.2. An eight (6) bed Transitional Housing Program in mental health region one (1)
at the Contractor's Bethlehem locaUon.

1.1.3. A Nveive (12) bed Transtiional Housing Program in mental health region four
(4) located et the Contractor's Bradford location.

1.2. The contractor shall submit copies of tobacco-free poJides that apply to both inside and
. on the grounds of each residence within thirty (30) days of the effective contract date.

1.3. The Contractor shad adhere to Administration of Medication standards as outiir^ In
NH Administrative Rule He-M 1200. Medication Standards, Pan 1202. Administration
of Medications in Behavioral Health Programs (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1200.
Part 1202).

1.4. The Contractor shall complete and maintain certification ar>d licensure In accordance
with NH Administrative Rule He-M-1000. Housing, Part 1002. Certrftcation Standards
for Behavioral Health Community Residences (hereinafter referred to as He-M 1000.
Part 1002). end NH Administrative Rule He-P 600. Resideniial Care and Health Facility'
Rules. Part 814. Community Residences at the Residsntial Care and Supported
Residential Care Level (hereinafter referred to as He-P 800. Part 614).

1.5. The Contractor shall comply with all State and federal laws and regulations
pertaining to the licensure and operation of a community residential program.

1.6. The Contractor shall be in compliance with applicable federal and State laws,
rules and regulations, and applicable policies and procedures adopted by the
Department and currently in effect, and as they may be adopted or anwnded
during the contract period.

1.7. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days unless dlhenvlse specified.

1.6: Transitional Housing Program

1.8.1. The Contractor shall operate a Transitional Housing Program (Program)
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week for the supervision
for clients, who are:

1.8.1.1. Eighteen (16) years of age or older, and

1.6.1.2. Eligible for community mental health services in accordance with.
New Hampshire (NH) Administrative Rule Chapter He-M 4(X),
Community Mental Health. Part 401. Eligibility Determination and
Individual Service Planning (hereinafter referred to as H^M^O,

NFI North, inc. £;tfaWl & Coniractor inlOah
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Part 401).

1.6.2. The Contractor shall operate Transitional Housing Programs to provide
housing end rehabilitative mental health services and supports for clients
ensuring:

1.6.2.1. Any bed is ovaitableto clients with end without Insurance.

1.6.2.2. Any bed is available to clients regardless of their ability to pay.-

1.6.2.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that no more than frve (5)
percent of bed days are available to individuals without
-Insurance.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall provide the following services on an individual and group
basis, as necessary, in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 400.
Community Menial Health. Part 426, Community Mental Health Services
(hereinafter refened to as He*M 400. Part 426):

1.6.3.1. Individualized Resiliency and Recovery Oriented Services:

1.6.3.2. Psycholherapeutic Services, including sex offender treatment;

1.8.3.3. Targeted Cese Managernent Services;

1.8.3.4. Partial Hospitalizatlon Services; and

1.8.3.5. Medication Related Services.

1.8:4. The Contractor shall provide assistance and instruction to improve and
maintain a client's skills in basic daily living, personal development, and
community activtlies. that shall include, but are not be limited to:

1.6.4.1. Personal decision making;

1.6.4.2. Personal care, budgetir^. shopping, and other functional skills:

1.6.4.3. Household chores and responsibilities;

1.6.4.4. Having relationships with people with and whhout mental illness;

1.6.4.5. Accessing a wide range of integrated community activities
including recreational, vocational, and cultural;

1.8.4.6. Participating In religious services,and practices of the client's
' choosing; and

1.8.4.7. Choosing end faring clothing that is neat, clean. In good repair,
and appropriate to the season and activity.

1.8.5. The Contractor shall provide the written processes for referrals, admissions,
evaluations and discharges'to the Department no laior than thirty (30) days

- from the contract effective contract date.

t.6.6. The Contractor shall serve clients referred from New Hampshire Hospital.
Designated Receiving Facilities, or Community Mental Health Providers who:

NFI Nvin. Ire. ExNeilQ CoflUaclor Initlaii
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1.8.6.1. Have 8 severe mental illness (SMI) or severe and persistent
mental illness (SPMI) and meet eligibility for community mental
health services at a community mental health program.asdefined
in He-M 400, Part 401;

1.6.6.2. Require extensivo support end rehabilitation to. successfully
transition frorn NHH or a ORF before moving to a less restrictive
alternative in the client's community of choice; and

1.8.6.3. Have been determined to no lor>ger require the love! of care
provided by NHH.or a ORF.

1.0.7. The Contractor shall give cltenls from NHH first priority of admittance to the
transitional Housing Program.fo.llowed by clients from'ORFs and the CMHPs.
The Contraclor.shall: .

1.6.7.1. Maintain a list of referred clients!-in order of referral dale; for
whom admission is sought.'but a bed is not yet available.

>  1.6.7.2. Collaborate with the Department on the data elements to'be
captured in the'Gsl. The agreed upon Qsi shall' be made available
to the Oepartmeni weekly, at a minimum.

1.6.7.3, Notify the Departfhcnt. In writing, prior to enrolling ncn-I^HH-
dienls inio the Program.

I.6.j6. The Contractor shall prioritize clients referred by NHH by having a referral.
admission, and evaluation process thai:

1.6.6.1. Places .current inp.atient clients at NHH ahead of all ORF end
CMHP referrals;

1.6.6.2. Provides for.a written .referral pfotocdi that includes a review and
evaluation of the client's current situation, assessment of need
artd disposition;

'1.6.6.3. Responds to all referrols. In writing, es to the client acceptaride or
denial into the Transitional Housing Program, including ari
:expldn3tiqn of any contingencies placed on the acceptance.; or
the reasons for denial of the client;

'1.6.6.4. Responds to the client, with a decision in writing, withiri'fouileen
(14) business days of receipt with a copy to the Department;

1.6.6.5. Notifies .the Deparirnentjn writing of any accepted referrals prior
to admission and transition into the Transitional Housing
Pr^rem;

1.6,8.6; includes an admission process approved by the Oepartmeni that
ensures the successful entry of accepted referrals Into the
program. In the event that a referral is not' successful In the
transition process, the'Corilraclor shall communicate with NHH of
the agency thai initiated the'.referral. verbally.and in wri(^o,-MJo

;Nn North. Inc. ExNbli 0 Contraetof (i^tiali ' "f
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(he reason(s) for the unsuccessful (ransHton; and

1.8.8.7.' Includes approval by the Oepartmenl for an dients being referred
by the community.

1.8.8. The Contractor shall develop and operate Transitional Housing Programs with
residential and rehabilitative miental health services and supports and be
operational no later than sixty (80) calendar days from the contract effective
date.

1.8.10. The Contracior shall become en enrolled Medlcetd provider through the
Oepart'menl's Medlcald program within In 120 days of the effective contract
date.

1.6.11. In the event the Oepartmenl inixrrporates Medicaid eligible Transitional
'' Housing Program(s) with its Managed Care Organizations, the Contractor

shall be notified by the Department end provided 120 days to enroll as a
provider with the Managed Care Organizations for all Medicaid eligible

- Transitional Housing Programs. Proof of enrollment shall be provided to the
Oeparlment within seven (7) days of enrollment.

1.6.12. The Contractor Shell have 8 discharge process for clients who are discharged
from the Transitional Housing Program thai:

1.6.12.1. Supports a maximum stay of two (2) years per client, per episode,
unless otherwise approv^ by the Oepartment in writing.

1.6.12.2. Ensures participdlion in discharge planning meetings w'lth
community mental health centers. NHH. other providers, and

. natural supports;

1.6.12.3. Provides for a written discharge plan that includes an evaluation
- of (he client's current situation, disposition and transition plan for
moving back into (he community;

'  1.6.12.4. Relains the client's bed. in the event that;

1.6.12.4.1. A client's conditional discharge Is revoked, arid the
client is readmitted to NHH. for up to thirty (30)
days.

1.8.12.4.2. A clieni ls voluntarily readmitted to NHH. for up to
thirty (30) days.

1.6.12.5. Demonstrates development arid implementation of a
. coliaborallve relationship with the community mental health

•  program and natural supports, including family, to develop the'
terms ol conditional discharges pursuant to RSA 135-C:50 and
NH Adminislraltve Rule He-M 600. New Hampshire Hospital. Part
609. Conditional Discharge.- end to develop treatment plans
designed to return each client to the community.

1.0.13. The Contractor shall submit e transitional plan that transitions ciient^a^k into
NFi North. Inc. 6 Coniraaor inlllNs.
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the'community to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract
effective date, wtiich includes, but is not iimited to:

1.6.13.1. Specific steps to move existing program participants into more'
integrated community settings. '

1.8.13.2. A person-centered plan that incorporates their needs, btkJ safety
ot themselves and the public per Administrative Rule Ho-M 400.

Pan 401 and He-M 400. Pan 408.

1.6.13.3. Coordination with the client's' local community merilal health
. program, peer support egencies, and other nature! supports to
provide other services and supports to the ctieni in the
community. .

1.6.13.4. -Invotvemeni of the client's family to support Integralion inio the
community, vriih the client's conseni:

1.8.13.5. Identification of any barriers to placement in the community with
a plan to overcome ihose barrlefs, that emphasizes interventions
necessary to promote more ppporlunities for integration into the
community. '

1.9. fVledicdl Servlciss

1.9.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) riegistered nurse is
,  available durir>g the hours of 8:00 AM (EST) to 10:00 PM (EST). Monday

through Friday, and 8:00,AM (EST) to 4:30 PM (EST) on Saturdays and
Sundays, or the availability of on-cali nursing that is available to come on-sile'
during the weekends end evening hours. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.9.1.1. Services ere provided on site, or in an office setting providing
there Is no medical reason to provide the serN^ces on site.

1.9.1.2. ' Medical services include, but are not limited to:

1.9.1.2.1. Anannu8l.reviewcor>ductcd by the regialerod nurse
In consultation with the client's Primary Care
Physician, of:

1.9.1.2.1.1. Health history:

1.9.1.2.1.2. Health status;

1.9.1.2.1.3. Supports .i.denlined or needed to
malnla'in physical, mental, and social
welKbeing inoorporating; and

1.9.1.2.1.4. All Core Standardized Assessment

required domains.

1.9.1.2.2. Instruction in, and assistance with, taking prescribed
medications independenttyr in accordance with Ha-
M 1200, Part 1202! AdminisUation of Met^tioi^ in

HFl Nonh. Iric. EtfVbllB ConlrMcrldiiaH,
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(he Transrtional Housing Program; and

1-9.1.3. Residential staff are trained (0 meet the requirements 8pec>r«d in
He-M 1200. Part 1202, Administration of Medications in the
Transilional Housing Program.

1.10. Heatlh Services

V10.1. The Contractor shall provide end triage health services for medical and
psychiatric needs twenty-four (24) hours per day seven (7) days per week.

1.10.1.1. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) masters level
clinician is on-call evenings, weekends and holidays to provide;

1.10.1.1.1. Emergency Irealmcnt;

1.10.1.1.2. Crisis intervention:

1.10.1.1.3. Coordination of Involuntary Emergency Admission
petitions, in accordance with New Hampshire (NH)
Revised Statute Annotated (RSA) 135-C;27 and NH
RSA 135-C;20; and

1.10.1.1.4. Coordination of revocation of conditional discharges,
in accordance with NH RSA 135-C;51.

1.10.1.2. The Contraclor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) registered,
nurse is available on^-caii the remainder of each day the'masters
level dinidan is not on-call. including weekends and holidays, to-
provide:

1.10.1.2.1. Education;

1.10.1.2.2. Problem solving and support regarding medications:
and

1.10.1.2.3. Response to health-related concerns.

1.11. Specialized Treatment
I

1.11.1. The Contractor shall ensure sex offender services; risk assessment
evaluations; and treatment for clients who have co-occurring disorders, or
require sex offender treatment, or other court-mandaled treatments are
availably, as necessary or as requested by the Department, ensuring services
are not be unduly delayed or denied.

1.-12. Wellnesa Management

1.12.1. The Contractor shall support a culture of wellness and provide clients with
access to services and activities, including but not limited to. 'Healthy
Choices-Healthy Changes'.

1.13. Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment (ANSA)

1.13.1. The Contraclor shall ensure clinicians are cenifted in the use of the New

NFI North, Inc. EtfifWB CoWfsdor Initiol*
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Hampshire version of ANSA 2.0. or olher Oepartmenl-approved evidence-
based tooliftfiey are a dintcian serving the adutt population.

1.13.2. The Contractor shatl ensure clinicians obtain certirication through the
completion of the Praed Foundation test.

1.13 3. The Contractor shall submit ratings to the Department via the database
• managed for,the Department in order to allow cllent-tevol. r^ional and
Statewide outcome reporting by the 15th of every month, in ANSA formal.

1.13.4. The Contractor shall ensure ratings generaled by the New Hampshire version
of tho ANSA 2.0 or other Departmenl-approved tools are utilized to:

1.13.4.1. Develop an individualized. person<eniered Ireatmeni plan.

1.13.4.2. Document artd review progress, toward goals and objectives and
assess continued need for community mental heafih services.

1.13.4.3. Assist In.deterrrtning eligibility for Slate psychiatric rehabilitation
services.

1.13.5. The Coritractor shall document assessments using the New Hampshire
version of the ANSA 2.0. or other approved tool when corvJuclirig re
assessments In accordance wiih the timeframcs specified In He-M 401.

1.13.6. The Contractor shaD ensure ah alternate evidence-based approved
•assessment meets all ANSA2.0 domains In order to meet consistent reporting
requirements. The. Contractor shall ensure:

1.13.6.1. Written approval is received from the Department prior' to
implementing a substitute for the ANSA 2.0. •

1.13.6.2. Monthly reporting of data through the substituted systern includes
the abilKy to complele client-level, regional and statewide
reining.

1.14. Pre-Adrnlsalpn Screening end Annual RcsldehfReview

1 14 1 The ConVraclor shall assist the Pre-Admission Screening and Annual-
Resident .Review -(pASARR) Office of the Department to meet the
requirements of the PASARR ^provisions of the Omriibus Budget
ReconqliaUpn Act df"l987.

114 2 Upon request by the PASARR office and wHh the appropriate authorization to;release informatioa ihe Contractor shall provide the PASARR cfTicc with the
information neccssary.to deterrnine the exigence of mental illness or menlat
reierdaildn Iri. a nursing .facility" appGcant or resident pnd shall .conduct,
•evaluations and examinations needed to provide the data to determine If e
•person being screened or reviewed requires nursing facility care and has
-active treatment needs.

•  1.15, Recovery 8hd;Reslllency Approaches
1.15.1. the Coniraclof shall provide clients with access to services that

NFI North, inc. ' .. exWbllB Ccnuaa.orlnillouilip
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vatues'Of recovery end resiliency through an emphasis on a strength-based
approach and person-centered service planning, in accordance'wHh NH
Administrative Rules Ke-M 400, Part 401 and Ke-M 400. Part 408.

1.15.2. The Contractor shall utilize the client's indivMual service plan lo assist the
client wKh identifying, cultivating and sustaining relationships with peers,
family members, ne'ighbors. landlords., employers, and others in order to
create a network of support .that will build resil'iency and strength based
recovery and wellness skills.

1.16 Complaint Manager Services ^
1.16.1. The Contractor shall designate a staff member 16 perform the responsibilities

of complaint manager in accordance'with New Hampshire'Administrative Rule
He-M.200. Practice and Procedure. Part 204. Rights Protection Procedures
for Mental Health Services.

1.17. Access to Prlmai7 Care'Physlclans

1.17.1. The Contractor shall assist each client with securing a local primary care
• physician (PCP) of the client's choosing, within thirty (30) days from the
effective contract date.

1.17.2. The Contractor shall coordinate client care with the POP.

1.17.3. the Contractor.shaii.exchange health informatioo at regular intervals with the
wiltten consent 61 the ctieni or guardian.

1.18. Coordinate Care with the.Legal System

1.18.1. The Contractor shall assess the legal commitment status of clients .residing In
the program and. tf deemed appropriate, proinde for the continuation of the
commitment via the proper legal process.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall provide coordination of care with the (egal system when
indicated, which may include, but is not limited to:,

l;ia.2.i. TheNH.Oepailfn^lofCbfroctlons.

1.10:2.2. the applicable NH County Attorney's OfTice.

1.1,6.2.3'. The NH Attomcy General's:Office.

1.19. Quality Assurance

1.19,1. The Ccniractof shaD perform, or cooperate in the performance of. quality
improvement and uliitzaiion review activities as determined necessary and
appropriate by U>e Department, within timeframes specified by the
Department, in order to insure the efficient and effectiye admlnlstratlo.n of the
NH Medicald program.

.1.19.2. The'Co.nlractor ehall erisure activities include, but are not limited to:

1.19.2.1. Maintaining detailed clienl records as required.by He-M 400, Part

NFl Northi'lrw. EkNWiB Contracior imunls /
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1.19.2:2. Submitting data necdssary to comply with federal reporting
requirements.

1.20. Client's Contrtbutlon for Clothing. Food and Housing

1.20.1. The Contfactor shall ensure clients are rxil required to sign residential leases.

1.20.2. The Contractor shall ensure clients are aware of and abide'by housing rules.

'  1.20.3. The Contractor shaO collect up 10 thirty (30) percer^t of each client's incon>e to
be applied toward the cost of housing and shall cdlecl an additional amount,
subject to approval by the Oepartnnent in writing, of each client's Income to be
'applied toward the cost of clothing, food, and other essential items. Financial.
reporting and analysis ol client contributions shall be monitored by the
Department upon request, through the auditing of client accounts and
recondliat'ion of the Contractor's expenses charged to clients In comparison-
to expenses charged to the Oepahment for general fund reimbursement. .

1.20.4. The Contractor shall establish a policy in which the agency works with ,the
client on estat>tishing a' clothing and fc^ allowance based on Income and
address steps to support Ih^ client in preparation for. and management of. a
rent increase upon discharge.

1.20.5. ■ The Contractor shall provide the process and method for calculating;
collecting; accounting for the client's contribution and share of expenditures;
and for ma'mtaining records for collections and expenses to the Department
for approval no later than ten (10) days from the contract effective date.

t.20.6. The Contractor shall ensure cRent contribution policies, processes end
metf^ods are designed to support the client's return to independent living while
providing cfient contribution toward the client's dothlr>g. food and housing
costs.

1.20.7. The Contractor shall ensure clients without incomes are not denied entry to
the program due to an inabiSty lo provide a client conlribution.

1.20.8. The Contractor shall ensure client funds in excess of client contribution, rf
- mairitained by the Contractor, are kept separate from program operation
revenues and expenses, and in client-specific Individual accounts.

1.21. Staffing

1.21.V The Contractor shall provido sufficient personnel to ensure the safely of
dients, staff, end the communily.

-  1.21.2. The Contractor shall.ensure staffing includes, bul Is not limited to:

1.21.2.1. One (1) Medical Oirectof'who:

1.21.2.1.1. Possess a valid licjense 10 practice medicine in the
Uniied States;

1.21.2.1.2. Possess a valid license to practice medicine in New
Harhpshire; and meets the requirements of RSA

NFl Nonh. inc. • ExMWi 0 Contractor inlflata
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135-C:2. XIH:

*1.21.2.1.3. Is Board-eligibte or 6oard<ertified in psychiatry
according to th« regulations ot the Arr>erican Board
of Psychiatry arid ^4eurology, Inc., or Us successor
organiiation at the time of hiring; and

1.21.2.1.4. Maintained Board eligibility or certiHcation
throughout his or her-tenure as Medical Director.

1.21.2.2.' 0ns (1) o<l^i>^i$irator or Director who is responsible (or the day-
.to^ay management, supervision, and operation of the residence.

1.21.2.3. One (1) registered nurse, licensed In accordance with NH RSA
32&-B. who is responsible for the delivery and supervis'ion. of
nursing services.

1.21.2.3.-1. One (1) registered nurse, as sited in Subparagraph
1.21.2.3., may be on-call during weekends and off-
hours and shall provide teteheaith and -face-to-face
services.

1.21.2.4. . One (1) nurse trainer who provides supervision to any staff
member author'ized to administer medications.

1.21.2.5. A sufficient number of personnel who shall prov^e nursing
seivices. consisting of registered nurses, licensed practical
nurses, and other staff. Nurses shaD be licensed as required by
RSA326-B.

1.21.2.6. A sufficient number Of direct care personnel who meet the twenty-
four <24) hour scheduled and unscheduled needs of the clients In
accordance with the individual client sen/ice plans, which Includes
but Is not limited to one (1) part-lime peer support speciatist as
defined In NH Adminislralive Rule He-M400. Part 426.13 (d)(4)
during daytime programming hours.

1.21.3. The Contractor shall have a minimum of one (i) direct staff member per
residence, per shift, wtien a client is occupying the residence.

1.21.4. The Contractor shall proN^e a staffing contingency plan lo Ihe Departmenl for
approval within th'irty (30) days of the contract effective date, which Includes,
but is not llmiied to:

-  1.21.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of
key-personnel or other personnel before or after s'igning of Ihe
Agreement;

1.21.4.2. Allocation of additional resources to ihe Agreement in the event
of inability to meet any performance standard;

1.21.4.3. Discussion of time frames necessary for obtaining replacements;

NFI North. Inc. 6«»iW8 Contractor initials
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'1.21.4.4. Capabilities to provide, in a timely manner, replacements and
additions with comparable experience; and

i.2l.4.i Method of bringing. replacements and additions up-IOKfate '
regarding this Agreement.

1.22. Emergency Response Plan.

1.22.1. The Conlractor shall submit an Emergency Plan for dienls in the event of a
natural, intenliortal or aoddantal inddeni or threat that affects the dieni's
health and safety to the Oepartmenl for approval wilhin ten (10) days from the
effective contract date.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shaD use ar>d disclose Protected Health Information In compliance with
the Standards for Privacy of Individually kfentrfiable HeaRh Information (Privacy Rule)
(45CFR Parts I60and 164) under (he Heailh Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with (he attached Exhibit I. Business Associate
Agreerhent. which has teen executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all conridential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. OHHS information Security Requiremenis.

2.3. The Contractor shell comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached hereto
end incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The. Contractor'shall meet with the Oeparlment quarterly, or as .requested by the
Department, to review quarterly programmatic reports submitted in a format specified
by the Department. The Contractor shad ensure data elements reported include, but
are not be liniited to;

3.1.1. . Total numl>er of vacant and occupied beds during the reporting period.

3.1.2. Total number of individuals referred, admined, and discharged during the
reporting period.

3.1.3. All admitted clienl's region of origin prior to placement at (ha transitional
housing program.

3.1.4. Ad discharged client's region of discharge from the transiilonai housing
program.

S.t.S. A!) client's legal status such as pending charges, convictions, involuntary
emergency admission (l£A) status.

3.1.6. All d'lenfs progress towards independent living including; -

3.1.6.1. Hospital readmission rate($);

3.1.6.2. Proiected discharge plans for each client;
&

3.1.6.3. Clinical updete5;.and ^

NFl North, Inc. ' E*rtbliB * ConlfaclorlnlUant-
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3.t.6.4. Pfogiammatlc offenngs. which may Include but are not llmUcd to:
3.1.6.4.V Social activities and outings.

3.1.6.4.2. Vocational support services. •

3.1.6.4.3. Wetlness groups.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit all required data elements via the Phoenix system, except
for the ANSA data, ensuring any necessary system changes are completed within six
(6) months from the effective contract dale.

3.3. The Contractor shall submH Individual client-level demographic and encounter data.
Including" non-biUable individual-specfic wrvicei to the O^artment's Ph<»nlx system
Of on an alternative format • identified by the Department, as specified by the
Department.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure all client data submitted Includes a Medicaid ID number for
cQenls enrolled in Medicaid and data etemenis that include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1. Ciiarit's housing status upon discharge;

3.4.2. Employment status;

3.4.3. Smoking status; and ' '

3.4.4. Mental health and substance use disofder(s) diagnoses.

3.5. The Contractor shatt submit monthly data no later than the fifteenth (15th) of each
month for the prior month's data, untess otherwise approved by the Department in
writing.

3.6. The Contractor shall review the Department's tabular summaries within five (5)
business days of the summaries becoming available.

3'.7. The Contractor shall ensure submrttcd data represents a minimum of:

3.7.1. Ninety-eight (96) percent of billable services provided; and

3.7.2. NIncty-elgnt (98) percent of clients served by the Contractor.

3.8. The Cdnlraclor shall ensure submitted service and member data shall conforms to
submission requirements, at a minimum of:

3.8.1: Niriety-eight (98) percent of the data records; and

3.8.2. All unique member identifiers shall be accurate and valid.

3.9. The Contractor shall submit quarterly program status reports to the Departrnenl no later
than the 15th of the month following the quarter as outlined and identified by the
Oepartment.

3.10. The Contractor shall submit monthly Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements.
The Contractor shall ensure:

3.10.1. The Profit and Loss Statement includes a budget column allowing for budgel-
to-actual analysis. k ̂

NFl North. irK. ' ExNbllB Contractor InWsli '^-'
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3.10.2. Statements are submitted witMn thirty (30) days after the end of each month
-  and are .based on the accrual method of accounting and include the

Contractor's total revenues and expenditums. whether or not generated by.
or resulting from, funds provided pursuant to the contract.

4. Performance.fVI.easures.

4.1. The Contractor shall actlvety and regularly collaborate with the Oepartmeni to enhance,
contract mortagement, tmproye rosulls. end adjust program delivery-and policy'based
on successful outcomes. ' - .

4.2.- The Cohtrodor may be. required 16 provide other key data end metrics to the
Departme.nt, including clieht-tevel demographic, performance, and service data.

4.3. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect arxf share data with the Oepailment 'in a
format specified by the Oepartrnerit.

5. AddillonalTerTins

S.I. impacts Resulting fi:om Court Ordera or Leg'rslati.ve^henges
.5.1. t. The Conlrador agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation or

court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, (he State
has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under
this Agreement so as to achieve cornpliance therewith.

l2. Culturally and Linguistically. Appropriate Services (CLAS)
') ■ . - v.

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they wiO provide to persons with limited Ervglish
proficiency and/or hearing Impairment to ensure meaningful access to their
prdgrarhs and/or services within ten (10).days of the contract effective date.

5.3. • Credits and Copyright Ownership

l3.i. All docurncnts. notices, press.releases, research reports and other materials
prepared during or resulting, from the performance of the services of the •
.Contract shall include the following stalemerit",.'The preparation of this
(repor1,.document etc.) vvasTinariced under a Cbntrad with'tha Stale of New
^Hampshire, Oepartrhent.of Health arid Human Services, with funds provided
In part by the State of New:Hampshlre and/or such other funding sources as
.were avaUable or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
•Human Services.'

5.3.2. :AII materials produced or purchased under the corilrect shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any end all origirial
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3:3.1. Brochures. i' '

'  :5.3.3.2. Resource.directofies.

NFI Noith, Inc. Exhlbue Cowodor iftfiids,
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5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters."

5.3.3.5. Reports.

S.3.4. The Contractor shell not reproduce any meteriels produced ur^jer the^
contract without prior written approval from the Department'.

5.4. Operation of Facitltlee: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

S.4.1. In tho oporoUon of eny facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders er>d. regulations of federal, stele, county ar>d
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to lews which shall Impose an order or du^ upon the contractor with
respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such
facility. If any govemmemal license or permit shall t>e required for the
operation of (he said facility or the performance of the said services, the
Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with
the terms and conditions of each such license-or permit, in connection with
(he foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contraci the facilities shall comply with all rules,
orders, regulations, and'requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marshal
and the local fire protection-agency, and shall be in conformance with local
building and zoning codes, by-laws and regulations.

5.5. EtiglbilKy Determinations

5.5.1. If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal
and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and proc^ures.

.  5.S.'2. Eligibility determinations shall be rhade on forms provided by the Oepartment
for that purpose and shall be made and remade- at such times as are
prescribed by the Department.

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the.
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder.
which file shall include all Information necessary to support.an eligibility
determinaUon and such other information as the Oepartment requests. The
Contractor shall furnish the Oepartment with all forms and documentation
regarding' eligibility determinations that the Department may request or
require.

5.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as
' well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding .

that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that ail
applicants for services shall be permitted'to fill out en application form and •
that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair,
hearing in accordance with Oepartment regulations.

6. Records fb fX
.NFl North. Itx. EdilbilB Coniraclof Irtilala
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6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data evidencing
and reflecting all costs end other expenses incu/red by the Contractor in the
performance of the Contract, and all income received or coDected by the
Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, wtvch suffciently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, arid which are acceptable to the Department, and to indudo,
without limitai'on. ali-tedgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs
such jas purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for

I materials, inventoiies. valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statrsticai, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of applicotlon and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient).
' records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the

■  Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.t.4. Medical records on each paiientfrecipleni of services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the Department,
the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained
pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

.  Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum nurhber of units provided for In
the Contract and upon'payment of (he price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all
the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obiigaiions as. by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed-after the end of the term-of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review
p( the Final Expenditure Report the Depanment shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall r^ain- the right, at Its
discretion, to deduct the anxiunt of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor.

1

7. .Use of Premises for (he State Owned Buildings - Governor Hugh Gallen State Otfico
Park Campus

7.1. The Contractor shall agree to use (ho State of New Hampshire owned buildings
. identified by the Department to provide the Transhional Housing Program on the Hugh
Gallen Slate Office Park South Campus in Concord. New Hampshire. ,

7.2. The Contractor shall agree to enter into a Memorandum of Understarviing with New
Hampshire Hospital (NHH) for grounds and building maintenance other than specifted
in Subparagraph 7.1.

7.3. The Contractor shall agree to the use of premises of State of New Hampshire owned

NFI North, toe. EtfilbllS , Contisdor Iniiiols
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buildings iri Subparagraph 7.1.35 follows;

7.3.1. Routine building maintenance Is defined :as normal wear and tear of the
building structure, envelope, syst^s. hardware, and fixed a&^ts (not
including kitchen appliances)..

7.3.2. Routine building maintenance does not include damage resulting In abuse or
negtecl by the Coniractof. Us agents, dients, and visitors.

7.4. The Contractor shall agree to the following responsibilities;

7.4.1. Establish accounts for all utilities (Natural Gas. Water. Sewer. Waste
Disposal and Electric) In the name of the Contractor, with NHH named as
'second' on each utility account. Invoices for each utility shad be seni directly
to. arxl paid by. the Contractor.

7.4;2. Be responsible for reimbursing the State based on allocated square footage
of the Howard'Recreational Center.

7.4.3. Assign a liaison and backup to develop a Maintenance and Housekeeping
Checklist (or routine repairs and maintenance needs. The Maintenarice and
Housekeeping Checklist wit) be available for the Hospital to review and
prioritize during the monthty inspection conducted by the Hpspltai. LiaiMns
will be the Qr>1y persons who shaU contact Hospital Facilities or Ehvironm^tal
Services Offices:

7.4.4. Liaison will be responsible for all keys, to include distribution, tracking, and
communication with the Hospital Facilities Office for lock repair or key
replacement;

7.4.5.- Be re^onsble. for routine household tasks, such as, moving of furniture,
chariging light bulbs, and minor plumbing repairs, such as. toilet unclogging;

7.4.6.. Be responsit>}e for.hpusekeeping in accordance with checklist.references in
Paragraph 7.4,3,..abpye;

7.4.7. Be responsible for window elr conditioniers rhaintenarice. repairs. 0r>d
jeplacernpnt;

7.4.6. Be resporislble to call Stale Office Complex Police if there is an emergericy
'requlririg maintenance, after ndrmarbusiriess hours;

.  7,4.9! Be resporislble for maintenancey repair, and replacement of household
appliarices. such bs reldgeratbrs. dishwashers, washer arid dryer, and
.stoves;

7.4.10. Be responsible for maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping
..features and decorations, such as gazebos', gazing bans, etc.;

7.4.1.1, Conduct monthly fire extinguisher inspections, in coordination with Hospital
:Faciliiies Of^ce. Maintain., or replace the extinguishers annually as
hecessai^;

7.4.12; ShaU take' respon^biii.ty for any damage due to occupancy, or ipas^cld
.NFfNorth.inc. EitfiiWtB CorUfactorInaixlt
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impfd^imcnts IncludifSg inlertof paintirig. and floor covering repair or
•. fcpiacemont. In no case shall Ihe ConUador make Improveironts without the
whiten permission of the Hospital Facilities Office: '

7.4.13. Properly maintain all equipment and will be responsible to pay for any
equipment needing replacement or repair:

7.4.14. Use the OeparlmenVs Information Technology (IT) cables only as approved
by theJT Oepartmeni:

7.4.15. Pay for the personal alarm TLifo Aisn") system;

7.4. ie. Be responsible (or snow removal and de-icing of steps and. Walkways
adjacent to the buildings:

7.4.17. Be responsible (or the purchase, supply, laundering, and managemenl of all
linens (sheets, pillowcases, bath towels, and face cloths);

7.4.16. Be'responsible for laundering and. management of aO client personal Items;

7.4.19. Assure all buildings are rdasonabfy rrtainlalned. kepi sanitary, arid clean
between scheduled cleaning inspections and services provided by the
Hospital; and

.7.420. Be responsible for disposal of recycling materials.

6. Termination Report and lransftlon Plan

0.1. in the, event of early temiination of the Agroemcnl. the Contractor shad, within'fifteen
(15) days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Oepartrnent a"
Trahsilion :Pl3n for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to.
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agrwmcnt and cslatllishes a process to meet those heeds.

8.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate wilh the Department and shall promptly provide
detailed, information jo support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any
"lntorm_atipn or data requested by the State related to the termination o1 the Agreetnenl
and translilon Plan and shall provWd ongoing commu.nlcaiion and revisions O! the
Transition Plan to,the Slate as i^uested.

0.3. In the event thai cJients'receiving seh/ices under the Agreerhent areTrarisilio'ned. to
having sorvicos.delivered by ahother'entity Including contrarted providers or the Stale.
the'Cdhtractdr tJiali, provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the
Transiiion Plan, the transilton Plan shall also specify the process for uninlerrupl^
'delivery of any other services the (^rilractorproyldes under this Agreement.

8.4. .The" Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients.,and other affected
indivWuals about 'the transition. The Cohlractbr shall include the , proposed
co'mmuriicalions.in, its Transiiion Plan subrhitted to the Stale as described above.

0;5. During term o.f this Coniract.and the period for retention hereunder, the Department,
vthd United'S.tates Departrrienl' of .Health .and Human Services, and. any of their
designated represeritaiives shall have access to.all reports and records m^ta.lned

NFI North. Inc. ErffbiiB .Cdnlrsctcr iriilials
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pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, eKamlnatlon, excerpts and trsnscripls.
Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum number of units provided for in
the Contract and upon paymertt of (he price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all
the obligatioris of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive
the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review
of the Final Expenditure Reporf the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed
by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shad retain -the right, at its
discretion, to d^uct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such
sums from the Contractor.

NFI North. Inc. CxMbll B Contractor initisli

S$-202t-DBH-03-TRANS-01 Page 18 01)6 Datethfio



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5487D896-44FC-4967-81FB-EE35EA33DD0F

OocuSIgn Envelope 10: gO5O810C-C391-44aS-gF89-35e6930BAFOA

Doo/Sign Envalope 10: 0SO4DA2»4C0M3F9^^6C6>2396A53358lC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transitional Housing Programs

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% general funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement;

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a (Subredpient or
Contrabtor). In accordance with 2 CFR 200.330:

2.2. The Deparlment has identified this Contract as NON-.R40. In
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. The Contractor shall bill and seek reimbursement for services provided to
individuals pursuant to this Agreement as follows;

3.1. For Medicaid enrolled Individuals through the OHMS Medicald Fee for
Service program in aaordance with the current", publically posted Fee for
Senrice (FFS) schedule located at www.NHMMIS.NH.goy.

3.2.For Managed Care Organization enrolled individuals the Contractor shall-
.be reimbursed pursuant to the Contractor's agreement with the applicable
Managed Care Organization for such services. '"

3.3. For individuals .with^other, health insurance or other coverage for the
• services they receive, the Contractor will directly bill the other Insurance or
payers.

3.4. For Individuals without health insurance or other coverage for the services
they receive, and for operational costs.contained in.Exhibits C-1 and C-2
for which the Contractor cannot otherwise seek reimbursement from an
insurance or third-party payer, the Contractor will directly bill the
.Oepartment to access contracl funds provided through this Agreennenl.

.  3.4.1. Invoices of this nature shall Include general ledger detail indicating
the Department Is only being Invoiced for net expenses, shall only
be reimbursed up to the currerit Medicald rate for the services
provided and contain the foliowing items for each client and line item
of service;

\ 3.4.1.1. First and last name of client.

3.4.1.2. Dale of birth.

3.4.1.3. Medicaid ID number.

3.4.1.4. Date of Service identifying dale, units, and any possible
third party reimbursement received.

4. Payrnenl shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with
the approved line item, as specified In Exhibits C-l, Budget through Exhibit C-
2. Budget.

NfI North. Inc. ErfuOUC Conif>ci(v INi'iah
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EXHIBIT C

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfadory to the State by the
hfteerilh '(15th) working day of the following month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred in the prior month.

■ The Contractor shall ensure'the invoice Is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate paymer)t.

6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may Pe assigned an electronic signature.and
emailed OHHS.D6HlnvoicesMHS@dhhs.nh.gov, or Invoices may be mailied to:

Tanja Godtfredsen
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

7. The State shall rhake payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequenit to approval, of the submitted invoice and if
sufTicient funds are available, subj.ect to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions ..
Form Number P-37-of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified inForm.P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7.
Completion pate.

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services, in
compliance with furtding requirements.

10.' The Contractor agrees that funding under thls.Agreement .may be withheld, in
whole or in part iri the event of non-cornpliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit's. Scope of Services."

11.. Notwithstanding anything to the. contrary herein..the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be'withheld. in whole or In part, in the.event
of hdn^compliance with any Federal..or'State'(aw, rule or regulalion applicable .
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily'completed in accordance with the terms and .conditions of this
agreement.

12. Nolwitlistandi.rig Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form .P-37, changes
limited to adjusting arnounls within .the price limitation a.nd adjusting
encumbrances between State Hscal Years.and budget class lines througti the
Budget Office may. be made by written agreement of.both.parties, without
obtairiing 'ap^dyal. of. the Governor ;dnd Executive Council, if needed.'and
justified.

ll .Audits'

13.1. the'Conlractor is required to submit.an annual audit to the Departmerit
if an'y of the following conditions exist:

NFI WOftfi, ■ Cdolficlbr Intiila ^ iO
SS-202108H-03-TRANS-01 PaQi Zors . OHo
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llV1. Condition A • The Contractor eiqoended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subredpient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the rhost recently completed fiscal year.

13.1.2. Condition 6 • The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH R5A 7:28, tll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

13.1.3., Condition C - The Contractor Is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange-Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

13.2. - If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Departmertt within 120 daVs after the dose of the Contactor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200. Sub'part F of the Uniforrn Adrninistraiive Requirements', Cost
Principles^ and Audit Requirements for Federal awards^.

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Conlractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an indeperident CPA within 120
days after'the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any- Contractor that .receives-an .arrwunt equal lo. or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, lo submit annual

■  financial audits ̂ rformed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessmerit determination indicates the Contractor is high-nsk.

1'3;5. In addition to. and hot" In any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, if is underslck>'d arid agreed by the Conlraclor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for ariy slate or federal audit exceplloris

" and shall re.turn to the Oeparlmerii all payments made under, ihe
ConltracI to which exceplioh has. been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an excieptiori.

NFiNortft.inc.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The vendor idoniified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisioRS of
.SectioTtt SiSi-5l60of the Orvg-Free Worttpiace Act of l9B8'(Pub. L. tOO^ESO, Title V. SubllUe 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.). end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Ccrtificotion:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INOIVIOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certirtcation Is required by theregulatbns implementing Sections SiSi-5l60.of the Orvg^Free
Workplace Act of 1980 (Pub. L. 100^90. Tiile V. Subtitle D: 41 U.S.C. 70i ctaeq.).. The JenuarySl.
1M9 regulations v^re amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681 •21691). and require certtricalion bygranleas (and by Inference, sub-grantees end sub-
contrectors). prior lo award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of Ihe
reguletior> provides thai a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and subcontractors) that is a Slate
may elect lo make one certification to the Depertmem in each federal fiscdi year in lieu of cedificales (or
aech grani during the federal fiscal year covered by the cenificelion. The certificate set out bei'ow is a -
rrtatcriai representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when (he agency awards the grant. Falsa /
certification or viotailon of the certJftcaliori shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or goverrvnent wide suspension ordebarm'ent. Contractors using .this form should
send it to: ' . v

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pteasanl Street.

Concord.NH03301-6505
r

1. The grentee ceHifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-froe vrorkplace by.
1.1. Publishing a slalemeni notifying employees that Ihe unlawful manufacture, disthbutlon.

disponsiog, possessron or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace end specrtying Ihe actions thai will be taken against employees (or violation of such
prohlblllon: .

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-tree awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-tree workplace:

, 1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabllltaiiori. and employee assistance programs; end
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vbiatiorxs

occurring tp the workplace:
1.3. Making 11 a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the slalement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. NctWylng the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

ennploymcnl.under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug '

stalulo occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

V5. f^ttfylng the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiv[r>g notice ur^der
subparagrap'h 1.4.2 from en employee or otherwise receiving ecluaf notice of such conviclioh.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tille. to every gram
officer on whose grant activ'ity Ihe conviciod employee was working, unless the Federal ogency

CU<0r*«ii9ri}

Ekhisil O - C«nlltc«tlort regertftng Drue FrM
' Wortplacx R*Quif^trtU
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has destgr^atad a central point (v the raceipl of such notices. Notice shaD include the
ideniiricaiion Humberts) of each affected grant:

t .6. Taking one of ihe following actions, tviihln 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
Bubparagreph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
l.6.t. Tailing eppropdate personnel action against such an employee, up to and induding

terminaUon. consistent wtih the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of IS73. as
emended; or

t .6.2. Requiring such employee to pertidpate sairsfactortly in e drug abuse assistance or
rohabiliiation' progrem approvad for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local heallh.
law enforcement, or other approprlale agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implomenlaliorf of paragraphs t.l, t.2.1.3, 1.4. 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insen in the space provided below iha 8lta(s) for Ihe performance of work done in
oonnactlon with (he spodflc grant.

Place of Perfomiatice (street eddress, dty. county, state, zip coda) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file thai are not identified here.

VandorNama: K^f-Z 7
C

6Vnl^o ,
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certification regarding LQBRviMr.

The Vendor idenuned In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees locomoiv with tho omvitiftnu 'M

end i if n Contractor o representative, as identified in Sections ̂  ^ ̂end 1.12 of (he General Prov^ions execute the foUovwinp Certif^Uon; •

US OEPARTMEfVT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US.OEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

^grems (Indicate ■ppiicetrle.program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families undo/Tide IV-A;Chfld Support Enforoemeni Program under Title lV-0
•Social Sorvlces Block Cram Program under Title XX
•Modfcald Progrem under TiUe XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Tifle Vt
*ChW Cera Oevelopmeni Block Gram under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, lo.ltie best of his or her knowtedge end beilof. thai:

' ■ ^ P®'"* Py undersigned loany person for InfluenclnQ or altomplmg to Influence en officer or employeo of any ooencv a Member
vnlh Iho ewarding of any Federal contracl. conlinualion. renewal emendmcnl or

,« ol """lio''
2. If any fi^s other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for

In "®r r " employoo of any ogency. e Member of Congross
®. Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
L 3" agreement (and by specific mention sub-giantce or sub-^troctr^. ur^rslgned shall completo and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form toReport Lobbying. In eccordancc with its Inst/uctiOM. attached and IdenHfied as Standard Exhibit E-i.)

3. The undersigned sheO require thai the language of this certifcation be Included In the award
®''"®'® <■'^''^■'"0 ftubcont/acls: sub^enij. and cooiracu under g/anisloens. end.coopcrahve agrec^menu) and thai ao 5ub-red>enls shaO certify and disclose accordingly;

This ce.fllflcaUori Is 0 maierial representation of fact upon wrtlch felianw was placed when this transacUdn
made or enle^ into, .^boiissloo of.lhls certification Is a prerequisUo for making or entering Into this

SmfirSSnSfi!? ^ P®'®P" P*® ^0 required^  ® '®^® artd not more than llOO 000 (0/09C/Isucni8iiuro. ^

081 Name:
TItJa:

.eWttl E - C«qnc<lion R^anSng Icbbylng Vondd Inluit

P-9«'of.l Oa^^jhf?rj
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CERTICICATIQM REQARDIHG DEBARMENT SUSPENStQN

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Idenlined In Sectfon 1.3 of (he Generel Provisions agrees (o comply with (he provtslons of
Executrve Oifr»ca of the PmsUent. Executive Order 12S49 eryj 4S CFR Part 76 reQardir>g Oebarrr^erM,
Suspension, end Other-Responsibility Matters, end further egroes to have (he Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections t.tl .and l.l2ofthe Gerieral Provisions execute (hefoQowing
Cerliftcation;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlract). the prospectivo primary participant is providlng'the
certilicetion set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide ihe cortincaiion required below will not necessarily result in denial
b( partidpationinlhis d^eredtrahsaciion. If necessary, the prospective participant shaa submit an
oxplonalion of why It cer^t provide the certifketion. The certification or explanation will be
cortskered in corvneclion v^th the NH Department of Health end Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into.this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish e certihcation or on explanation shall disguatify such'person from participat'ion in
this transaction.

3. The certificaticin in th'is douse Is o material repreMniation of fact upon which reliance was placed
whan OHHS dotormlned 10 enter Into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
prlrhaiy pat^cipanl khowlngty'renderod en orroneous certification, in addition to other remedies ■
aveltable to the Federal Govemment, DHH5 may terminate this transaction for cause or delauU.

4. The prbspective.prlrhary participant shall provide Immediaio written rtotice to the OHHS agency to
whom this propos8l.(controcl) Is submltied If at any time, the prospective primary participant loams
that its cerpncaiion was erroneous when submitted or has.b^orne erroneous by reason o.f changed
circumstances.

:5. The terms •covered transaction,* •debarred,' *8usper>ded.* 'ineiigibla.* 'tower tier covered
transaction.* *pa/ticipanl.*-"pcr80n,**pr1m3ry covered trahwclion,' 'prlndpai,* *prcpos8l.* and
•voluntarily excluded.* as used in Utis dause. have the rnaanings set out .In Iho Oermitions end
Coverage sections of,the rules implementing Executive Order 12S49:45 CFR Pari 76. See the
dttsched definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submittlng'thls proposal {contract) (hat. sfwid the
proposed covered t/ansaclion be entered inlo,-)l shall rwl linowtr>g1y enter into any lower liar covered
(ransactionjwith a persdn.who'is debarred, suspended, declered Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
ffpm particlpation'in this covered transaction. uNess.^.lhortzod by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal thai It will IncKida the
Ciousp titled 'Cerdflcdtlon Regarding Debannoni. Suspension, Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion t
Lower Tier Cove^ Trahsoctions.* provided by OHHS. without modification, in all lower Uer covered,
transactions and in ell soticiiallons for.lpwer ller covered transacilcns.

6. A participant In e covered transaction may,rely up^ a certificatibn'of a prospective participant in a
tower |lar covered trensacttoh that it is debarred, suspended. Ineligible, or Involunlartly excluded
ifrcm ihe.coverlrt transaciion. unless ll knows that Ihe car^flcaiton is erroneous. A penkipani may.
dedde die method and frequency by which it detetm'ines the'eligibility of its principals. Each
.^rUo'panl nn'ey, but is not required to. check iheiNonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

'9. Nbthir^'cdnlalned In the foregoing shall be consirued to require estabtlshrTtenrbf e syslern of records
in ordor.tb rerrder In.go^ faith,diejcertirtcalionVequirpd by.this clause. The kryjwledgb erto

£xMtflFrCwr'irciaonft*93fd!ne(>«bsmionl. Susicmtan VcntJoi InUtl*
Oihw R«tponftt&iliir , ,.-/L
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tnfoirnatidn of e bdittdpflhl is rxjt required to exceed that which Is rwmelly possessed by a prudentperson In the ordinary ixiurse of business dealings.
to. £{rf8{pt for trsnsacMns outTorlaed ur^der peragraph 6 of these instnjcUons. If a pertidpent In a

ooveired iransacliqn krtowingly enters into e tower tier covered (ransectlon v^ih e person who Is
suspended, daberjed. IneU^bla, or voluntarily excluded fronS participation in this transaction, in

PRP 79 fSITCidf r^dies available to the Federal govemmervt. OHHS may terminate this transaction
or dofauh.

PRIMARY-eOVEREO^TRANSACTlONS
11. The prospective primary partia'pant certrfies to the best of its knowtedge end belief, that |t and its

principals:
11.1. are not prea.enby deborred. auspended, proposed for oatiarmertt.. declared inaiigibie. or

.votuntarlly excludad from covered transactions by any Federal dapanmonl or egency;
11.2. have r^)l wUhln a Uvee-year penqd preceding this proposal'(contract) been convicted of or had'

a civil judgmerli rer^dered egainsi Ihem for co'rnmrssion of fraud or e criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, atternpting to obtain, or performing e public (Federal. Stale or local) -
Irensaclio'n or a cdntracl upder a public-t/ansaciion; violatioh of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement theft, forgery, bribery, falsificaUori or destruction of
records, meUr>g false statements, or receMng stofan property;

11.3. ere not presently Irvdicted fpr otherwise crlrn'maUy or crviiiy charged by a governmental ervtiiy
(Federal. Slate or local) wflh oommlssion of any of the offenses enumereied in paragraph (l}<b)
Of this certificaiion; end

11.4. heve not withiri a three-year period preceding this oppQcetlon/proposal hed one or more public
trenuciions (Federal, Stole or locoi) temSihated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the stalemenis in this
.cert/frcation. such prospective participant shall attach pnexi^anation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVHREO TRANSACTIONS
13.-6y signing and submitting this tower tier proposal {cor^lracl). the prospeclive lower tier partidpanl. as

derineti In 4S CFR Port 76. certiflos to the best of Its knowledge end belief that it end its principals:'
liS.l. are.hot presently dobaned. suspended, proposed for debarmeni. declared inengibio. or

voluntarily excluded from parV^pation In this transaction by any f^eral department'or agency.
13.2. where.the prospe^jve lowe'r tier partidpanlfs unable (6.certify to ony of the above, such

prospective portic^ant shall attach en explanation,to this proposal (contract).

u. Thp prospective lowaf'tiar participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (bontroci) (hbt.li wID
Include this clause entitled 'Gertirication Regarding belMrmenf, Suspension, trveligibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lt^r Tier Covcrod Tronsacilons.* without modiOcelion In all lower tier covered
transactions ervd in bit sbrtciiatior\s for lower tiair covered transactions.

Vendor Name: C- ^rVC

:& /yio
Dale Narno;^ -ftiu'l t.,

lEr^l F - CeniacdUbn ReQir^tng Oebtrmenl. Suspemton
And Othe< Re»paniiti(nty Matters

PJO0 2 cr 2

Vandor Inltlats
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CEATIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^ASEO ORGANgATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor IdsnUfied in Section 1.3 of the Geneoil Provisions ogmes try signature of the Contractor's
representative as IdentiTied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foOowIng
eeiiiteeUon;

vendor will compty. and will require any sutrgraruees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
(aderai nondiscrlmination roquiremenb. which may ndude:

•  the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1908 (42 U.S.C. Section 37690} which prohlbib
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminstino. either in empioymont practices or In
Ihe delivery of serv'ces or benefits, on (he basis of race, cojor. religion, national origin, and sei. The Act
requires cedaln redpienls to produce en Equal Employment Opportunity Plan:

• the ̂ venil'e Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b}} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act'. Recipients of federal funding uryfer this
slalute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In Ihe delivery of services or
beneftls. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal.
Emptloymeni Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the CMI Rights Act of 10S4 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on (he basis of race, color, or national origin ir> any program or acliviiy):

- the RehabiBlation Act of 1973 (29 U.S:C. Section 794). which prohibits rocipienia of Federal rmancial
essblance from discrlmiruttir^g on the basis ol disabtSiy, in regard to employmeni and the dolivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Oisobilrties Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Socttons 12131 •34), which prohibits
discrimination arvd ensures equal oppoduriity (or persons wiih'disabililies in employment. Stole end local
government services. pubEc accommodations, commercial faciiities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.168S-86}. which prohibits
dis^minalion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108O7). which prohtoits discrimination on the '
basis of age in programs or octiviiias receiving Federal rinenciai a.ssislence. M does not (ncludo
employmeni discrlminaiion; , \

- 28 C.F.R. pi 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42 •
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nor>discriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Pfocedums): Executive prder No. 13279 (equal protecdon of the laws for faith-based and community
organsalions): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamantal principles end policy-making
criterie for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizat'ons;'

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Oepartmcnt of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Foilh-Based
Organlzetions); end Whistlcblowcr protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The Nelfonal Delense Aulhorlzeiicn

■Act (NDAA) for Fiscal .Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enaclod January 2. 2013) Ihe Pilol Program for
Enhancenienl of Controcl Employee WtuslleWower P'rolocrions.^ich protects employees egainsi

' reprisei for certain whistle blowing aciivliies in conrteciion with federal gronts and contracts.

The certllicale set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed whert the
agency awards (he grant. False certifcalion or violation of the certificaticri shall be grounds for
suspension of peyments. suspension or lermlnallon of grants, or governmerii wide suspension or

- debarmenl.
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In ihe event a Federe) or State court or Federal or State administrative agoncy makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing of> the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or aex
against a radpknt of lu.nds. the reciK^ent will forward a copy of the ftndfng to iha OfTice for CM Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within (ha Oepartmertt of Health and Human Services-, arid
10 the Department of Health end Human Services OfTice of iho Ombudsman.

The Vendor Idenbfied In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees by signature of the Contractor's
represanlbtive as idahtrfied In Sections i. \ t end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the (onowirtg
cartiTicalion:

i.: Qy signing end submltting'this proposal fcpniraci) the vendor agrees to comply with the provisions '
Indkaled above.

Vendor.Nama; Mf-r

1.0
Date Name

Title;
\  0^ k/.kJ y ^

EjiNbtlC
Vendor ininlj I ■ -■
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

PubCc Low 103-227. Part C - Envlroomenial Tobacco Smoko. also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires lhat smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indMr'fscility owned or leased or
oerMractad for by an entity ar4 used routinely or regularly for the provision of heallh, day c3re..aducaUori.
or library services to children under the age of 16. If the services are funded by Federal programs eiiher
dtrecfly or through State or kxal governments, by Federal gronl. coniracl. loan, or loan.guarantee. The
low doo» not apply to chltdren'a oarvtoes p<ovCded In private resider\c«8. faciiiUos fundod eolaly by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used for inpatleni drug or alcohol treatment. FaQuro
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
}1000 per day and/or the tmpostilon of an administrative compliance'order on the responsible eruity.

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of (he Genera! Provisions agrees, by signature of the Connector's
.ropresenlalive os idonllfled In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execuie the lotlowliig
certificdt'ion:

I. 8y signing end aubmitiinjj Ihis coniracl. the Vendor agrees to make raesonabla.efforts lo comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. knowri es (ho Pro-Children Ad of 19M.

Name;

lln.
Date

Title

iill

EOuMH.CafVaesUohRapsnfiftO Vsndo'lnjUflb
EfMipnmantf Tobao
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HEALTH tWSURANCE PORTABlLfTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Sed^on 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreomeni agrees to
comply with ihe Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Lew 104-191 and
wilh the .Standards for Prfvecy and Security of Individually Idemifi8t>le Heatth Information, 45
CFR Paris 160 and 1W appllcabie to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate'-shal) mean the Contractor and subcontractors end agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under (his Agreement and 'Covered
Entity'..shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(i) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning es the term 'Breach* in. section 1^.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Assodete' has the meaning jgiven'such term In section I60..ip3 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code.of Federal Regulations.

d. Desionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as (he term 'designated record set'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501. i .

e. 'Data AQoreoaiion' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
•  :Se:Clion164.5D1.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning,as the term 'health care operations'
'in 4_5 CFR Section 164.501,

g. 'HITECH Act* ni'eans the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TllleXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery end Reinvestment Act of

'2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Heatihinsuraiice Portability arid Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards'for Pnvacy and Security of tndividuelly Identifiabte Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I  .

I. 'IndivMuar shall have (he same meaning as the term 'indtvlduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
end shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal reprosentative in'accordance with 45

• CFRSeclion'l64.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for F^rivacy of Individually Identifiable Health,
Information at 45'CFR Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIP^ by the United Stales
Oe^rtmeni of Health arid Humah'Servlces. ■ -

k. 'PfOtected'Hisalih Informalion' shall have'the same mearwng as Ihe, term "protected health
information* in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the.information created or received
Business Associdle.frorri ,or on behalf of Covered Entity.

EiMM I. Comrtcw inUiu
Health instance Portabtl'jy Act
euHnaas Aisaclote AgrtcmcM
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I; 'ftcQuired bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

f"- 'Secfelerv'shall mean the Secretary of the Departmem of Heaiih and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee. •

n. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security St3r>dards for (he Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pdril64. Sutjpan C. and anrtendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Prelected Meatih Infcrmalioo' means protected health Infonnatton that is not'
secured by a techrwiogy st8r>dard that renders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indedpherable to unauthorized individuals ar)d is developed or endorsed by
a standards developir^g organization ihal is accredited by the American Naliorial Standards
Instiluta.

p. Other Definitions - All (errfis not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
rtlTECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Oleclosure of Prolectod Health Information.

B. SuSiness Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit' Protected Health
inlormelion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary 1o provide (he services outlined under'
Exhjbii A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but rx)t limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner (hat would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use pr'disclqse PHI:
' I.; For the proper management and administration of the Business.Associate;

ll. As required by law. pursuani to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
lit, For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Bus'mess Assoo'ate ls permuted under'tne Agreement to disclose PHI to a
.'third party. Business Associate rnust obtqin. prior to rnaking any such disclosure. (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party thai such PHI will be held connd.entially ar^
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which ii was.
disclosed to the third party; and (il) en egreemeni'fro.m such third party to notify Business
■Associate, (n .accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any'breaches of-the confidentiality'of the PHI , to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shell not, unless such.disclosure is reasonably necessary to.
provide services under Exhibit A of (he Agreement, disclose.any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis th'at it is required bylaw, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and.
to seek appropriate reljef.. If Covered Erility objects to such disclosure, the Business

vnu ,ConVador inliloli
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■Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted at!
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by edditional reslrfctions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

.  safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
^all be bound by such additional resthctions and shall not disctose 'PKI. in vioiatiori of
such eddiiional rostrictions and shall abide by any additicrial securtty safeguards.

/

(3) ObliQatlonfl and AcllvHIflB of Buelnose Afisoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
efler the Business ^sociate becomes awaro of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information arvf/or any security inddeni that may have an Impact on the
protected heelUi information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It t>ecomes
aware of any of the above situations. ' The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, induding the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identiricaiion;

o The unauthorked person used the protected health information or to whom the
.  disclosure was made;

0 Whether (he protected health informaiioh was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report'lhe findings of the ri sk assessment in writing to the
.Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with al) sections of the Privacy. -Security, and
Breach Noilficdtion Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
aiy] records relating to the use and disclosure of PHC received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary (or
purposes ofdetermir^ng Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA end (he Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shatl require all of its business associates thai receive, use or have
access to phi under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use end disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (i). The Covered Entity
shall be conside/ed a direct third party beneficiary ot the Contreclor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receivlno PHI

V2014 ExMbBI Conveeof htiltels
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pursuant to this AgrMrT>ent. with rights ot enforcement and indemivficalton from such.
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
coritrad provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use end disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within Tive (S) busfness days.of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Assodet.e shall meke available during normal business hours at Its ofTtces el)
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure

^ of PHI lo (he Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance wilh the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten ̂ 10} business days of receiving a wrinen request from Covered Entity,
Business Assc^ate shall pro>ndo access lo PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
•Covered Entity, or es dirwted by Covered Entity, to an individual in order lo meet ihe
requirements! under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) buslriess days of receiving a written request from Covered Erilify for an
amendment of PHI or a record aboul en individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
arrwridrhent and incorporate any such amendment to enaWeCovered Entity 16 fulfil) its
obligations under 45 CFR Section .164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disdosures.BS would be required for Covered Entity to respo^ to a request t>y an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrinen request from Covered Entity for a
request for an acoounling of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make avellablis
10 Covered Entity such Infofmaiion as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures vyith/espect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. in the event any irxJivldual requests access to. amendment of, or accounllng.of PHI
difwily from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Eriti^. Covered Entity shall have,the
res^nsibility of respondbg lo forwarded fequesls. However. If forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would Muse Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to vioiele MIPAA or>d the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law end notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within Ibn (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Buslriess Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
reiceived from, qr created or received by tho Busiriess Aissociale In conrieclion with the
Agreenieni. and shall not retain any copies pr back-up tapes of such PHI. if return or
destruct'ion Is not feasible, or the disposition of ihe PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate'shan'coniinue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses arid disclosures Of such PHI to thpS|e
pUHpOses that make Ihe/eturn or destruclion Infeaslblo. for so long es Business
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Associate maintaiAS such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Assotiate shall certify to
Covered Entity (hat the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ' Oblloatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes orJimii8tion(s) ir> Ks
Notice of Prtviscy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1&4.520. to ihe.extent that such change or limitation may effect Business Assodate!s
use of disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of eny changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164,506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shell promptly notify Busihess^Associale of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agrood to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the evtent that such restriction may atfect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) , Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms end conditions (P-37) of this
Agleemerit the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
■Entity's kriowledge of a breach by Business Associate-of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit (..The Covered Entity may eiiher immediately
terminala the Agreement or provide en opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a b'meframe spedned by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure <s feasible. Covered Entliy shall report the
violalloo tp.the Secre^ry.

(6). MIncellanoouo

■ a. Definilions and Reoutatbrv References. Ail terms used, bul not otherwise defined herein,,
shall have the same ir^aning as those tenns In the Privacy and Security Rule, amerced

'from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in (he Privacy end Security Rule means the Section as Jn effect or as
amer\dod.

b7 ' Amer^merit. Covered Entity and Business Assodate agree to take such aciJon as is
necessary to emend the Agreement, from (imo to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the charvges ir) the requirements of HlPAA. (he Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state.law. .

c.; Data Ownership: The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no owr^ership rights
with respect to the PHTprovided by or created on behalf of Covered.Entity.

d. fnteroretation. The parties agree thai any ambiguity in the Agreernent shall be resolved
.10 permit Covered Entity to pompiy with HlPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.
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SeofaQallon. If eny term or condiUoo of IN* Enhibli I or th« epplicottor) (hereof (6 any
personfs) or-circumstance ts held invalid, euch invalidity ahall r>o( affect other lorms or
co.ndiUor>3 which cen be given effect wilhoul the invalid term or condition; (o this end the
terrns end conditions of this Exhibit I ere declared severable.

Sufvivfll. Provliions In this Exhibit I rooarding the use and disclo&ura of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI,- extenslons'ol the protections of the Agreement In secilon (3) i. the
defense and indemniftcsdon Revisions of section (3) e end Paragreph 13 of the
•landard terrna and cortdiiions (P>37). anatl sui^lve the tonnlnation of the i^roement.

\j |-£- 1
Conu^tor

Sig

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, iho'panies he^io have duly executed this ̂ hibll l.

Oepertmeni of Health and H\anen Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

\dl^Yow S
Name.ohAumorfzed Representalive

Tlile ol Authorized R^/esenidiive

^(■p-'T/'dO
Dale

ofAuthorized Represen

TtHe of Auihorized Representative

tative

L. pl b
Name ofAuthorized Roprosenvative

C. V- -h » /L A c. Ta /t-
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CCRTlFICATlbN RgGARDtHQ THE FEDERAL FUNmNG ACCOUNTABlLrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The FedemI Fuhdiflg'AccbuntoUity 'ond Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prtme ewarcJeea of individual
Fedttfsj grants equal to or gmater than $2S.OOO and award^ on or after October 1,2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and assodsted first-tier sub-grantsoF >25.000 or more. If the
Initia) award Is belMr >25,000 but subsequent grent modificabons resuR in a total award equal to or over
>25,000, me award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements; as of (he date of the award.
In acoordartcia with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subeward and Executive Ccmpensab'on Infonmation). the
Department of Health end Human Scirvioea (OHMS) must report the fodowing information for any'
subsward or eontract eward subject to the FFATA repoiting requirements;
1. Nemo of entity
2. Amount of awiard

3. Funding agency
'4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
6. Program source"
6. Award tHie descriptiva of the purpose of tha funding action.
7; Location of tho entity
6. Prlnclpleplaceofparformance
0. Unique identrfior of the onlity (DUN S 0)
10. T(MI oompensotion ond nanies of the lop five executives (h

10.1. More then 60% of annual gross revenues am from the Federal govemmeni, and those
revenues ere. greater than >25M annuelly and

10.2. Compensation informatioh is hot already available through reporting to the SEC.

Pilme'grant redplenls'must submh FFATA required date by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in wftich
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor ideniined in Section 1.3 of (ho General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Tho Federal Funding AcoountebQItyandTransparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110*252,
and 2 CFR P8rt'l70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further pgrees
to have the .Controct^a ropreser^btive, osideniifladin Sections l .tl and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certincallon:
The below named Cohtrectpr agflaes to provide needed mfortnatidn as'outllned above to (he NH
Deparlmeni of.Health end Human'Senrlcas jand.to comply with all.applicable provisions of (he Faderai
Financial Accountebtiily.'and Transparency Act.

Contmctor Name: X^(^,

(Till ho
Tioe:

£y-tcv W.'.e.

PvS

Eth!&a'J - C«rene«UoA'n.i9»rffing M Fsdtrtl Fwndlns Conb«eter lAtkb.
AeeBuAtabliiyA^ Tnra^ncy AS (ffArA) CompUnc* li & /•>

Cttowaniero" Rpgpiorj 1u13/jLG
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•  forma

As Vie ConUfiCtor identifted In Section 1.3 of (t>e General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below Osted questions are Inie and accurate.

1. The OUNS number for your entity is: 0 I A f 0 V

2. In your business or organaetion's preceding completed Fiscal year, did your business or organi2ation
receive (i} 80 percem or more of your ennuai grese revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontrocts.
loans, grants. sut>^ronis. end/or cooperatlye agreements; and (2) S2S,000.000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative egreemonb?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 Above is NO. slop tiere

If the answer to 02 atx>ve Is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public nave access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business oir organization through periodic reports filed under section t3(a} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (1S U.S.C.78m(a), 78^d}} or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If ihe answer to 03 above is YES; stop here

If (he answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. Tr\e names and.compensstion of (he five most highly compen^ted officers in your business or
organizaliori ere as f^lows:

Name:,

Name:.

Name:.

Name:.

Namei

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CtpOOOn ■«!>)

j - C«nnc4Uon Ragifping uw Faeeui FunSifle
AcceunUbllily AAd TnnsptwKy Ad,{FFATA) CempUAc*
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• A. Definitions

The foliowfng terms may be renected and have ihe described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* moans Iho toss of control, compromisd. unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term retening to
situations where persons other than authorized users and tor an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, wt^ir»cr pl^ysJcai or electronic, With regard to Protected Heellh
Information. * Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term •Breach'in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incldenr shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
incident* In section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61. Computer Security' incident
Handling Guide, National Irlstllute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
ofCommerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data* means alt confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance tenefits and'persorial informaiion including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treaimerit Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Idenltfiable Inforrnation.

Confidcniiai Information also includes any and all informaiion owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hunhan Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which 'collection, disclosure, protection, and disposHion is governed by
state or-federal law or regulation. This Information.includes, but' is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFlj. Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Secunty Numbers (SSN).
Payrhent Card IhduslfV (^'). of sensitive and confidential Informalioh.

4. "End User* rheans any per'son or. entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or deriyatlye data in accordance svith the terms of this Contract. •.

5. 'HIPAA* means'the Health Insurance Portability^and Accountabilily Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incidenr means an act that poteniiaiiy vjplat'es an explicit or Implied security poficy.
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access Id a
system or its data, unwanted disruptiorl or denial of service, the uriauthorlzed use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characlerislics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the'ioss of data through trieft or device misplacement, toss
or m'isplacemeni of hardcopy docufnerits. and mlsrouling of physical or electronic

VS.Uirupdjl®1C»9/l8 EiWWiK CooJt«clof.lftWab -
OHHS Wometfon ,\ /

S«cjrtiy
Pagaicrft '(



DocuSign Envelope 10: 5487D896-44FC-4967-81FB-EE35EA33DD0F

OocuSIgn Envelope 10: flDSDBlbC-C391-44B5-9Fg9.3586930BAFDA

OocvSign Envelope ID: 0SO4OA29-6CO5^3F»VkSC0-2398A$3358iC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

meO. all of whidi may have the potential to put the .data at hsk of unauthorized
eccess. use. disclosure, modification or destniction.

7. 'Open Wreless Network* means any network ar segment of a network that Is
not designstod by the Slate of New Hampshire's Oepartmont of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, erxl
approved, by rheans of the Stale, to transmit) will Oe considered an open'
network and not,adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confldential OHHS data.

B. 'Personal Information' (or 'Pi') means information which can be used to disliriguish
. or trace an indtvidual's ideni^. such as their name, social security'number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or wher) combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as dale and r^ace of birih, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Healih
Information et 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgaled under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health information' (or 'PHI*) has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' In Ihe HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F R. §

• 160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
P'roiected Heallh Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health inrormailon' means Protected Healih Informatioo that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.'

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.' Business Use and Disclosure of Conftdenlial Informatlori.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmrt Confidential Information
. except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
'use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contraclof must not disclose any Confidenlial Information in response to a
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.  request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If OHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to be bour^d by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PH>
pursuant to the Prtvacy and Securtty Rule, the Contrector must t>e bound by such
additional restrictions and musi not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by eny oddiltonal security safeguards.

.4. The Contractor agrees that OHHS Oeia or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contrector agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may rrat be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. '

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized represeniailvos
of OHHS for the purpose of inspecting to connrm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

Ii;. rviETHODSOFSeCURE.TRANSMISSIONOFOATA

.  1. Application Encryption.. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data betvsrieen appticalions. the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
appticdbon's erScryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. .

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. Erul User may not use a^puter disks
or portable storage devices, such.es e thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.'

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidenlial Data if
emeil la encrypted and being sent to end being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site, if End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidenlial
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web sit© must be
secure. >SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hostirvg Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User-may not use file
host}r>g. services^ such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
ConfidenUal Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may onty^transmit Confidential Data via cerlirtod ground
mail within the continenlai U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable. devices to transmit
Confide.ntial Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password^prolected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidenlial Data via an open

OMMS WonnHion yl J
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wireiess network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotiely transmitting via an open wireless network.

•  ,9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Oala, a virtual private netvvork (VPN) must be
irutalled on the End-User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information win be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File transfer Protocol: If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Conlkfential Data, End User witl-
stmcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-fgiders used for transmitting Confidentia! Data will
be coded for 24-hour autq-deletion cycle (i.e. Conftdentlal Data will be deleted every 24
hours). .

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting ConHdential Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypt^ to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

iil. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF lOENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor vntl ortly retain the.daia and any derivalive of the data for the duration of this
-  Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any

derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To .this.end.Mhe parties must:

A. Retention

• «1. The Cbntracldr^agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the' services' reridered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales; This physical location requirement'shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud eorvicc or cioud. otorego copabiiitics. end includes backup
data and Disaster Ftecovery ipcatipris.

■2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security .monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events thai can impact Slate of .NH aysterrts
end/or Department confidential information for.contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to providia security awareness and .education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Oepadment conndential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail eliectronic and harp copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location arid ideniified in section IV. A.2

5. The Co'nir'actor agrees' Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with, alt applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy arxf security. All servers and devices must have

'  currently-supported and hardened. op«rating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, 'anti-spam, anli-^ware. and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intn/siorvdelection and firev^ll proteclion.

6, The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
.Chief Information Officer In (he detection of any securrty vulnerabaity of the hosting
Infrastructure.

■6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conrtdeoliai informsUon on tts systems (or Hs
sut>contractor systems), the Contrador will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon requesi or contract (erminalion; and will
obtain, written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media coniaiotr^ State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in eccordence with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion arid media
sanitizalion. or otherwise physicaDy destroying the media (for example.-
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-86. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizatjon, National Institute of Standards and Technology, 0. S.
DepartnrieiM of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writng at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certincation to the Department
upon request. The v^itten certification will include all details necessary to
demonstraie data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be loinliy-
evaluated by the Slate and Coni/ector prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified; within thirty (30) -days of the. terminatiort of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Date using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unfess otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of Ihls
Contract. Cont/aclor agrees to completely destroy alt electronic'Conridentlal Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data, wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. .Contractor agrees to safeguard (he DHH5 Data received under this Contract, end any
denvativ'e dald or files, as follows:-

1. The Cdritractor .will maintain proper security coiitrols to fvotect Depanmeni.
.cohfidential inforrhatioh collected! processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. Tbe' Contractor will maintain piolicies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Informatron througtiout thelnformation tlfecycie, where ap^icable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media lised to store the data (i.e.. (ape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monilonng capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confkjential Inforrnation for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor win provide regular security qwareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core .functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, .the Contractor wDl maintain a
program of an internal process or. processes thai defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a mirtimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worV with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Slate qf'New Hampshire and Department system access arxf authorization policies

\ and procedures, systems access forms, end computer use agreements as pail of
obtaining and .mainlaining access to any Department systerh(s). Agreements wQ). be
compleled and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being eulhorized.

6. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement.
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work wii.h the Department at its request to complete a System
Management- Survey. The purpose of the survey te to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over IhO'life of (he Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate lime frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the .Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagcmonl between the Departmeni ar>d the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unXnowingty. any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office

<  leadership member .within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor ShaP
-  make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
.  -prevenl future breach and minimize any damage or toss resultirvg from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor aU costs of response arid recovery from
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the breach, (ndudlr^ but not limited to: credit monitoring services, maning costs and
wsis associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
tna oreach.

12. Contrectpr must, compty with all applicabte siatutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and securfty of Conridential Information, and must in all othor respects

I^® .scope thai is not "less
K S ^e^wremenls applicable to federal agencies, includingbut not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 .(s tj.s.C. § 552a) OHMS
Pnvacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy end Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
Information and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contrador agrees to establish and maintain appropriate edminlslratlve. technical and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data arid to
prevent unauthonzed use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of sewnty that is not less than the,level and scope of security rfeouirements
establish^ by the Stale of New Hampshiro. Department of information Technoloov

• Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.90v/doiVvcndor/index htm
for the Department of. Informalion Technology policies, guidelines, standards end
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
States S«urity Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section Vj. This indudes a confidential Informalion breach, computcf
security incident, .or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Harripshlre systems that conneci to the Stale of New Hampshire networti.

15. Contractor muil restrict access to the Corriidcnlial Data obtained under this
Contract to only those airihorized End Users ,who need such OHHS., Data to
perform their Official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor rnust ensure that all End Users:

0. compty wiih such safeguards as refe'renced in Section IV A. above
Implemenied to protect Confidential information thai is furnished by OHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadverter>t disdosure.

b.. saf^uard this informatioh at all times.

c. ensure thai laptops arid other electronic devices/media containing PHI PI or
PFl are encrypted er>d passvwrdrproteded. ' '

d. send emails contairiing Confidenlial information only If encrypted and being
sent to and ;being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

OKHS irrormiOon
.SeoMliy
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limit disdosure of the Conndeniial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conrtdential Informetlon received under this Contract and individualiy
identiftable- data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that rs
physically and technoioglcdily secure from.access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours- aswell as non:duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric fderrtifiers, etc.).

Q. only suthorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. ir>cluding ariy
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in ell.cases.
such data' must be encrypted et all times wtien in transit, at rest, or whan
stored on portable media as required in secOon iv above. .

h. in ail other instances Confrdenliai-Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriaie saif^uards, as determined by a risk-based
fissessmeni of the tircumstances involved.

I. understand that their user'credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with ertyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indtrecUy through
a third paity appiicalicn.

Contractor Is responsible for ovcr.sight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to mpnilor compliance with this
Conlracl, including the privacy'and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other'appilcabie laws and Federal regulations until such lime the ConfidentialData .
is disposed .of in accordance with this Contract.-

V. LOSS REPORTING. ^

-The Cor^ractor must notify the State's Privacy 'Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Sreaches' immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Sectipn VI.

The Contractor must further haridle end report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In ■
accordance with the. 'agenc/s. documented^ incident Handling and Breach Nolificatlof)
procedures and In accqrdarice w'lm 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 308. in addition to. end
noMihstendlng.iConiractor's compliance-with all applicable obligations and procedures.'
Contfactor'e procedures must also.address how the Contractor will;

'1. Identify Ihcldenls;

2. .Determine 'if.personally identifiable.information Is involved in lnc'idents;

3. f^eport suspected or confirmed Inctderlts as required In this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify end cbriyene a core response group to deterrhine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to'lhcideni$; er>d
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New Hampshire Department of health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

S. Determine whether Breach rtotification is requireO. and. if-so. identity eppropriale
Breach notification" methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach r^itrce as weD as any mitigation
measu^.

Incidents and/or Breaches thai implicate Pi must bo addressed and reported, as
oppiicabio. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CCMTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

6HHSPr1yacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gov

B., DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInfofm8tionSQcurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs.luivpdn'tomns ErffbUK CefUrMorMUth
DHHS inlonrulian.
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